
WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

AGENDA 
 

Monday, February 28, 2022 7:00 pm Fugett Middle School Auditorium  
  
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
*Consent Agenda Items 

 
I. Call to Order  ...................................................................................... President Tiernan 

Salute to the Flag (led by Kyra Oshop and Joseph Falcone 
of East Goshen Elementary School) 

 
II. Roll Call ................................................................................................. Ms. Cherashore 

 
III. Public Comments on Agenda Items (Sign-in Required) ........................ Ms. Cherashore 

 
IV. Approval of Minutes of the January 24, 2022 Monthly  

School Board Meeting.............................................................. President Tiernan 
 

V. Approval of the February 28, 2022 School Board Meeting Agenda .... President Tiernan 
 

VI. Superintendent’s Report .......................................................................... Dr. Sokolowski 
 Student Representatives’ Report ....... Eleana Rudderow, East High School 

    ............ William Porter, Henderson High School 
    ............. Madison D’Ambro, Rustin High School 

 
VII. Approval of Personnel Recommendations ...................................................... Dr. Ulmer 

 
VIII. Approval of Consent Agenda .............................................................. President Tiernan 

 
IX. School Board Reports 

 
Committee Reports 

 
A. Education ............................................................................................... Director Shaw 

* 1. Approval to Terminate the following Account(s): 
-Henderson HS Family Reach 
-Henderson HS Girl Up 
-Henderson HS Jewish Student Union 

* 2. Approval of the following Study/Excursion trip(s): 
-Rustin HS Science Olympiad, Solon, OH, January 14-15, 2022 
-Rustin HS DECA, Hershey, PA, February 16-18, 2022 
-East HS Indoor Track, University Park, PA, February 26-27, 2022 

* 3. Approval of 2022-23 District Calendar, Second Reading 

* 4. Approval of New Board Policy 140: Charter Schools, First Reading 

* 5. Approval of New Administrative Guideline 140: Existing Charter School 
Renewal Process Guidelines, First Reading  

 
B. Pupil Services .................................................................................... Director Chester 

   

 



 
 
AGENDA Page 2 Monday, February 28, 2022 

 
 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
*Consent Agenda Items 

C. Personnel ........................................................................................ Director Herrmann 

   

 
D. Property and Finance .......................................................... Vice President Bevilacqua 

* 1. Approval of Revised Board Policy 903, Public Participation in Board Meetings, 
Second Reading 

* 2. Approval of 2022-23 E-Rate Bids 

* 3. Approval of New Board Policy 006.3 Broadcasting Board Meetings, First 
Reading 

* 4. Approval to Award Bids for 2022-23 Capital Reserve and Capital Fund Projects 

* 5. Approval of Resolution Authorizing Parameters for the Refunding of Bonds 

 
 Other Reports 

A. Intermediate Unit .............................................................................. Director Durnell 
B. PSBA Report ................................................................................ Director Herrmann 
C. Legislative Liaison ............................................................................... Director Shaw 
D. Equity Report ................................................................................... Director Durnell 
 

X. Other Business ................................................................................... President Tiernan 

* 1. Approval of School Board Treasurer’s Report and Statement of Disbursements 
Summary Schedule for the Period of  January 1, 2022 to January 31, 2022 

* 2. Approval of the January 31, 2022 Financial Report 

 3. Approval of The Devereux Foundation d/b/a Devereux Advanced Behavioral 
Health Contract for Bilingual Therapy Services 

 4. Approval of revised West Chester Area School District Management Team 
Organizational Chart 

 5. Approval to appoint Board Member Daryl Durnell as a member of the CCIU 
Board of Directors 

 
XI. Comments from Residents (Sign-in Required) ................................... President Tiernan 

 
XII. Adjournment ....................................................................................... President Tiernan 

 
 

West Chester Area SD public meetings are live streamed and recorded for the purpose 
of public broadcast and posting on the Internet. The West Chester Area SD disclaims 

responsibility for both images, statements and/or actions made by those in attendance 
at the recorded public meetings. 



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL BOARD—Meeting of January 24, 2022 

Documents previously distributed to Board Members are not recopied or submitted with 
this draft. Minutes of this meeting, in compliance with Section 518 of the School Laws of 
Pennsylvania and after approval by the School Board Members will be transcribed into 
the permanent minute book together with reports indicated (copy in). Routine reports and 
lengthy multi-page documents made a part of the minutes of this meeting are filed 
separately for permanent record. 
 
 

I. Call to Order 

 
The West Chester Area School Board met at 7:00 p.m. in the Spellman Education 
Center, 782 Springdale Dr. Exton, PA. Board President Tiernan, called the meeting to 
order and Shiv Venkataraman and Shaynthika Kota of the West Chester Elementary 
Cyber Program led the public in the pledge of allegiance. Elizabeth Flood (via Zoom), 
Diya Krisha, and Sydney Munz of the West Chester Middle Cyber Program spoke about 
the school year. 

 
II. Roll Call  

 
Members Present:  Vice President Bevilacqua, Director Chester, Director Detre, 
Director Durnell, Director Fleming, Director Herrmann,  Director Shaw, President 
Tiernan, Director Whomsley. Student Representatives: Eleana Rudderow, East High 
School; William Porter, Henderson High School; Davis Patel for Madison D’Ambro, 
Rustin High School. 
 
Members Absent: Madison D’Ambro 
 

III. Public Comments on Agenda Items 
 

Name Subject of Testimony 

IV. Melissa Bennett V. Supports expanding observed holidays beyond Judea Christian 
on the district calendar.  

 
 

IV. Approval of  Minutes of the December 20, 2021 Monthly School Board 
Meeting 

BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Director Herrmann and seconded by Director Durnell 
to approve the minutes of the December 20, 2021 Monthly School Board Meeting.  
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 9-0. 
 
 

V. Approval of the January 24, 2022 Meeting Agenda 



January 24, 2022 

BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Director Detre and follows: seconded by Director 

Shaw to approve the January 24, 2022 Meeting. 

 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 9-0. 
 
 
President Tiernan announced that the Board met in Executive Session on December 29, 
2021 regarding school safety; January 18, 2022 regarding Personnel; January 20, 2022 
regarding school safety and legal matters and this evening, January 24, 2022 regarding 
a legal matter. 
 
 

VI. Superintendent’s Report 
Superintendent Sokolowski and the High School Student Representatives gave monthly 
reports. 
 

VII. Approval of Personnel Recommendations—Dr. Ulmer (Copy In) 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Director Fleming and seconded by Director 
Herrmann to approve the Personnel Recommendations as presented.  
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 9-0. 

 
 

VIII. Approval of Consent Agenda 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Director Detre and seconded by Vice President 
Bevilacqua to approve the following Consent Agenda Items: 

Education 

1. Approval to Terminate the following Account(s): 
-Henderson HS Kids “4” Kids Club 
-Henderson HS School to School 
-Henderson HS Video Production Club 
-Henderson HS Warrior Alliance 
-Henderson HS Warriors Helping Warriors 

2. Approval of the following Study/Excursion trip(s): 
-Rustin HS Wrestling, Indiana, PA, January 6-8, 2022 
-Henderson HS Model UN, Philadelphia, PA, January 27-30, 2022 
-East HS DECA, Hershey, PA, February 16-18, 2022 
-Henderson HS DECA, Hershey, PA, February 16-18, 2022 
-East HS Model UN, Washington, DC February 17-20, 2022 
-Rustin HS Band, Oahu, Hawaii December 4-10, 2022 
-High School German and History, Berlin, Germany, June 22, 2023-July 1, 2023 

3. Approval of 2022-23 Curriculum Proposals in the amount of $1,720,800 

4. Approval of 2022-23 District Calendar  

5. Approval of 2021-22 Holiday Calendar Resolution  

Pupil Services 

1. Approval of two (2) Special Education Settlement Agreements 



January 24, 2022 

 

Personnel 

 

Property & Finance 

1. Approval to Acknowledge Receipt of the 2020-21 Local Audit Report 

2. Approval to Allow the District’s Financing Team to Proceed with Preparation of 
a Parameters Resolution for the Refunding of GOB Series A of 2012, Series AA 
of 2016, and Series of 2017 and issue 2022 General Obligation Bonds 

3. Approval of Revised Board Policy 903, Public Participation in Board Meetings, 
First Reading 

 
Other Business 

Approval of School Board Treasurer’s Report and Statement of Disbursements 
Summary Schedule for the Period of December 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021 
 

WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

JANUARY 24, 2022 

STATEMENT OF DISBURSEMENTS SUMMARY  

FOR THE PERIOD DECEMBER 1, 2021 - DECEMBER 31, 2021 

    

GENERAL FUND DISBURSEMENTS 25,385,433.96  

  includes Technology,  

     Federal Programs and any Special State Funds  

 BILLS PAID 25,385,433.96   

 INVESTMENTS 0.00   

    

    

CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 240,574.44  

    

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 281,947.27  

    

SPECIAL REVENUE - Athletics 24,380.80  

    

TRUST FUNDS  17,985.06  

    

CAFETERIA   125.20  

    

STUDENT ACTIVITY FUND DISBURSEMENTS 23,078.90  

    

TRUST AND AGENCY FUND DISBURSEMENTS 25,943.74  

    

    

 TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 25,999,469.37  

    



January 24, 2022 

NOTE: A copy of the details of the above disbursements is 

              available for review from the Board Secretary.      
 

Approval of the December 31, 2021 Financial Report 

 
On roll call vote to approve the above Consent Agenda Items, all members present 
voted “aye.” Motion carried 9-0. 
 

IX. School Board Reports 
 
Education Committee — Director Shaw 
 
Pupil Services Committee — Director Chester 
 
Personnel Committee — Director Herrmann 

Property and Finance Committee — Vice President Bevilacqua 

 
D-6. Approval of 2022-23 Technology Projects in the Capital Reserve Fund 

BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Vice President Bevilacqua and seconded by Director 
Herrmann to approve the 2022-23 Technology Projects in the Capital Reserve Fund not 
to exceed a total budget of $4,083,261. 

 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 9-0. 

 
D-4. Approval of 2022-23 Capital Fund Projects 

BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Vice President Bevilacqua and seconded by Director 
Fleming to approve the 2022-23 Capital Fund Projects not to exceed a total budget of 
$1,350,611 for Phase 3 – sloped roof replacement at Rustin High School. 
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 9-0. 
 

D-5. Approval of 2022-23 Capital Reserve Projects 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Vice President Bevilacqua and seconded by Director 
Herrmann to approve the 2022-23 Capital Reserve Projects not to exceed a total budget 
of $2,323,177. 

District-wide Emergency Repairs $60,000 

District-wide District-wide Concrete Sidewalk and Curb 
Replacement 

$79,800 

District-wide District-wide Playground $100,000 

Facilities Replace Two (2) Rooftop HVAC Units $150,000 

East HS Stage Lighting Controls Package 
Replacement 

$43,000 

East HS Purchase new storage containers for athletic 
storage 

$40,000 

East HS Install Fiber to Stadium $85,000 



January 24, 2022 

East HS Replacement of Exterior Fixtures with LEDs $121,880 

Henderson HS Replace Flooring in Admin and Guidance $45,000 

Henderson HS Replace Flooring in Library $85,000 

Henderson HS Replacement of Exterior Fixtures with LEDs $43,832 

Rustin HS Auditorium Roof Replacement $550,000 

Rustin HS Repair sanitary sewer line $35,000 

Rustin HS Renovate existing space into an MDS 
Classroom 

$90,000 

Peirce MS Emergency Generator Replacement and 
Transfer Switch 

$95,000 

Peirce MS Heating Boiler Replacements $285,000 

Peirce MS Repave Main and Rear Drives $265,000 

Fugett MS Replacement of Exterior Fixtures with LEDs $54,665 

Westtown Thornbury 
ES 

Replace Emergency Generator $95,000 

 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 9-0. 
  

X. Other Business 

 
X-3. Approval of revised West Chester Area School District Management 

Team Organizational Chart  
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Director Herrmann and seconded by Director 

Chester to approve the revised West Chester Area School District Management 
Team Organization Chart with authorization for the District to proceed with 
immediate posting of unfilled positions with a start date of July 1, 2022. 

 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 9-0. 
  

XI. Comments from Residents 
Name Subject of Testimony 

Sara 
Castelluccio 

Cited examples of her children’s struggles with wearing masks 
and asked that they become optional. 

Daniel Gillin Stated mask mandates don’t work, provided data for mask 
optional school district case counts and requested that masks be 
optional. 

Mike Winterode Questioned why the book, “George” is in the middle school library. 

Alexis Cooper Requested that masks be optional and questioned why the district 
is not moving to this now by empowering students and teachers to 
make their own decisions. 

Mike Armento Asked that teachers have query boundaries regarding vaccination 
status, questioned why the book, George, was used for a Middle 



January 24, 2022 

Name Subject of Testimony 

School reading assignment, and requested a policy that limits 
teacher’s ability to discuss potentially political hot button issues. 

Sara Getz Thanked board for continuing to follow health and safety plan and 
appreciates mandatory masking to keep everyone safe. 

 

On motion by President Tiernan, seconded by Director Chester, the Board recessed at 

8:23 pm for 15 minutes. 

The meeting resumed at 8:39 pm. 

Name Subject of Testimony 

Jodi Nawrocki Expressed continued support for masking. 

John Reilly Thanked district for ending contract tracing, believes 
mandatory masking is damaging to children and asked that 
masks be optional. 

George Nestor Asked the board to apply common sense to drive their 
decisions not personal opinions regarding masking. 

Shannon Bruno Asked fellow parents to hear their neighbors speak when 
they support masking for everyone’s safety. 

Anita Edgarian Wondered why the school board took a 15-minute recess, 
and asked the board why it would not provide a response. 

Suzie Smith Concerned about the way students with mask exemptions 
are treated and asked the board to change the health & 
safety plan. 

Jenna Meade Stated the comment made by a board member comparing 
masking children to drunk driving was insensitive and 
thoughtless. 

Steph Anderson Thanked the board for their continued support of the health 
and safety plan and masking. 

Priyanka Gupta Thanked resource officers for recent meeting, requested drug 
use education be brought back to the schools and applauded 
SEL program. 

Katrina Nolan Supports continued masking in schools and is hopeful that in 
the spring a reduction in cases will allow masks optional. 

Melissa Bennett Praised good communication by administration during recent 
East HS incident, stated that wearing masks is even more 
important now that the contract tracing has ended, and 
supports equity and inclusion. 

Rachel Langan Stated 10 things learned about the West Chester Area 
School Board. 

Kristin Palmer Feels masking is a personal decision and asked that the 
mandate be removed immediately citing mental health issues 
caused by masking. 

Steve Kernaghan Supports mask mandate. 

Nancy Wood  Applauded district’s commitment to equity and inclusion. 



January 24, 2022 

Name Subject of Testimony 

Judi Di Fonzo Encouraged people to read the book “Lost at School” or any 
of Ross Green’s books. 

 

President Tiernan then stated that the ultimate reason the board is here is for the 

students. 

 

XII. Adjournment 
BOARD ACTION: On motion by Director Chester seconded by Director Durnell, the 
Board, on voice vote, agreed to adjourn at 9:20 p.m.  
 
 
 

 

Board Secretary 
 
 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – February 28, 2022 - p.1 

 
 

I. Removal from Payroll 

a. Resignations 

    1. Kali Gianacopoulos, 1.0 Learning Support Teacher at Stetson MS, effective 6/16/22. 

    2. Hilda Madanat, 1.0 Paraprofessional at Stetson MS, effective 3/1/22. 

   3. Gary Mayo, 1.0 2nd Shift Custodian at Rustin HS, effective 2/11/22. 

   4. Alijah Munoz, 1.0 Paraprofessional at Exton ES, effective 2/18/22. 

   5. Andre Stephens, 1.0 2nd Shift Custodian at Exton Elementary School, effective 
2/28/22. 

 

b. Retirements 

    1. Susan Cornelius, Athletic Director at East HS, effective 9/23/22. 36 years of service. 

2. Charlene DiRocco, Certified School Nurse at Rustin HS, effective 6/16/22.  20 years 
of service. 

3. Victoria Grant, Certified School Nurse at Exton ES, effective 1/26/22.  12 years of 
service. 

4. David Kelly, Technology Education Teacher at Stetson MS, effective last day of the 
2021 – 2022 school year.  25 years of service. 

5. Dr. Robert King, Science Teacher at East HS, effective last day of the 2021-2022 
school year.  15 years of service. 

6. Sandra Murawski, Special Education Teacher at Fugett MS, effective last day of the 
2021-2022 school year. 17 years of service. 

7. Lisa Phifer, Supervisor of Special Education, East Feeder, at Spellman Education 
Center, effective 8/2/22.  12 years of service. 

8. Dr. Leigh Ann Ranieri, Director of Pupil Services as Spellman Education Center, 
effective 7/1/2022.  13 years of service. 

  

c. Terminations 

    1. Kai Spann, 1.0 2nd Shift Custodian at District, effective 2/28/22. 

 
II. Additions to Payroll 

a. Professional Staff: Contract 

1. Michael Roman 

 Placement 1.0 Music Teacher at Penn Wood ES, Temporary Professional 
Employee (Non-Tenured), effective 2/9/22, Level 1, Step 2, $50,100. 

 Education Bachelor of Music from West Chester University 2012 - 2018 

 Experience High School Music Teacher at Pennsylvania Leadership Charter 
School 4/2020 – current, Lead Elementary Teacher/Music Director at 
Steel River Playhouse 7/2015 – 8/2015 

 Certification Instructional I, Music 

 

b. Professional Staff: Long Term Substitute 

   1. Jordan Bergeman 

 Placement 1.0 Grade 3 Teacher at Exton ES, Temporary Professional Employee 
(Non-Tenured), effective 1/3/22, Level 1, Step 1, $46,000.  During Ms. 
Milowicki’s leave of absence. 

 Education Bachelor of Science from Temple University 2013 - 2017 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – February 28, 2022 - p.2 

 
 Experience Building Substitute at Exton ES 4/2021 – current, Early Childhood Co-

Teacher at Beginnings Learning Center 2017-2018 

 Certification Instructional I, Grades PK-4, Special Education PK-8 

  

   2. Karen Celfo 

 Placement 1.0 EL Teacher/Grade 2 Teacher at Fern Hill ES, Professional 
Employee (Tenured), effective 2/24/22, Level 1, Step 1, $46,000.  
During Ms. Miller’s leave of absence, followed by Ms. Peterson’s leave 
of absence 

 Education Bachelor of Science from Elizabethtown College 2000 – 2003, Master 
of Science from West Chester University 2000 – 2003, Program 
Specialist Certification from Neumann College 2016 - 2017 

 Experience Building Substitute at Great Valley School District k9/2021 – current, 
Reading Specialist Long Term Substitute at Fern Hill ES 9/2020 – 
6/2021, Reading Specialist Long Term Substitute at Peirce MS 9/2018 
– 1/2019, Grade 6 Teacher at Central fBucks School District 8/2003 – 
6/2007 

              Certification Instructional II, Reading Specialist, Elementary; Program Specialist, 
ESL 

  

   3. Jennifer Ding 

 Placement 1.0 Math Teacher at Rustin HS, Temporary Professional Employee 
(Non-Tenured), effective 2/9/22, Level 1, Step 1, $46,000.  During Ms. 
Sweeley’s leave of absence. 

 Education Bachelor of Science from Oakland City University 1992 – 1996, 
Master of Education from University of Illinois 5/2003 

 Experience Substitute Teacher with Kelly Educational Services 9/2021 – current, 
After School Science Clubs Instructor at Science Explorers 12/2021 - 
current 

 Certification Instructional I, Mathematics (pending) 

  

   4. Kimberly (Wes) Harris 

 Placement 1.0 Music Teacher at Stetson MS, Temporary Professional Employee 
(Non-Tenured), effective 2/2/22, Level 1, Step 1, $46,000.  During Ms. 
Dunn’s temporary assignment. 

 Education Bachelor of Arts from University of Maryland 2012 – 2016, Master of 
Arts from University of the Arts 2020 - 2021 

 Experience None 

 Certification Instructional I, Music 

  

   5. Tiziana Murray 

 Placement 1.0 Italian Teacher at .8 East HS/.2 Fugett MS, Temporary 
Professional Employee (Non-Tenured), effective 2/22/22, Level 1, 
Step 1, $46,000.  During Ms. Dougherty’s leave of absence. 

 Education Bachelor/Masters from Universita degli Studi, Italy 1988 - 1994 

 Experience Italian Instructor at Haverford Township Adult School 2/2011 – 
current, Italian Instructor at Cabrini University 9/2014 – 5/2020, 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – February 28, 2022 - p.3 

 
Substitute Teacher at Pope John Paul II High School 2/2016 – 
6/2019, Italian Instructor at Villanova University 9/2011 – 12/2014 

 Certification Pending 

  

   6. Emily Paladino 

 Placement 1.0 Art Teacher at Fugett MS, Temporary Professional Employee 
(Non-Tenured), effective 2/7/22, Level 1, Step 1, $46,000.  During Ms.  
McCain’s leave of absence. 

 Education Bachelor of Arts from Temple University 2016 - 2019 

 Experience 1.0 Art Teacher Long Term Substitute at Exton ES 1/2021 – 6/2021, 
Substitute Teacher with Kelly Education Services, current 

 Certification Instructional I, Art K-12 

  

7. Jennifer Rose 

 Placement 1.0 Gifted Resource Teacher at Henderson HS, Temporary 
Professional Employee (Non-Tenured), effective 1/27/22, Level 1, 
Step 1, $46,000.  During Ms. Castilla’s leave of absence. 

 Education Bachelor of Arts from Marymount Manhattan College 2001 – 2004, 
Master of Arts from Hunter College-City University of New York 2010 
– 2013 

 Experience Substitute Teacher with InSight Workforce/Kelly Education Services 
10/2017 – current, Grade 6&9 Global History Teacher at NYC 
Department of Education 9/2013 – 6/2016 

 Certification Instructional I, Social Studies 

  

   8. Rachel Schlosberg 

 Placement 1.0 Gifted Resource/Math Specialist Teacher at Westtown Thornbury 
ES, Temporary Professional Employee (Non-Tenured), effective 
1/27/22, Level 1, Step 1, $46,000.  During Mr. Thompson’s temporary 
assignment. 

 Education Bachelor of Science from West Chester University 2016-2020 

 Experience Learning Support Long Term Substitute Teacher at Marple Newtown 
School District 9/2020, Grade 2 Long Term Substitute Teacher at 
Downingtown Area School District 11/2020 – 6/2021 

 Certification Instructional I, Elementary K-4, Special Education Prek-8 

  

c. Administrative Staff: Contract - None 

 

d. Support Staff: Non Bargaining  

    1. Katharine Briglia 

 Placement .4 Staff Nurse at District, effective TBD, $26.59. 

   

e. Support Staff: Contract 

    1. Mary Danbach 

 Placement 1.0 Secretary to the Principal at Peirce MS, 7.5 hrs./day, 5 
days/week, 262 days/year, effective 2/22/22, Group 3, Step 5, 
$20.71. 

2. Maurice Hawkins 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – February 28, 2022 - p.4 

 
 Placement 1.0 2nd Shift Custodian at Stetson MS, 8 hrs./day, 5 days/week, 262 

days/year, effective TBD, Group 5, Step 2, $20.61. 

    3. Holly Ridgeway 

 Placement .5 2nd Shift Custodian at Greystone ES, 4 hrs./day, 5 days/week, 262 
days/year, effective 2/28/22, Group 5, Step 2, $20.61. 

4. Sivalohanathan Sinnathuri 

 Placement 1.0 2nd Shift Custodian at District, 8 hrs./day, 5 days/week, 262 
days/year, effective 2/14/22, Group 5, Step 2, $20.61. 

    5. Patricia Ward 

 Placement 1.0 Paraprofessional in the life skills room at Henderson HS, 7 
hrs./day, 5 days/week, 182 days/year, effective TBD, Group 1B, Step 
6, $15.75. 

 

f. Support Staff: Substitute 

1. Jahleel 
Collins 

Substitute Custodian, effective 2/7/22, $18.00/hr. 

2. Hameen 
Dorsey 

Substitute Custodian, $18.00/hr. 

 
 

III. Personnel Events 
a. Status Change 

 
Name Type From To 

Effective 
Date 

1. Peter Altland Professional 1.0 Grade 5 
Teacher at 
Greystone ES 

1.0 Teacher on 
Assignment for 
Elementary 
Schools 

1/31/22, 
10% 
stipend 
added to 
salary while 
on 
assignment 

2. Kathleen 
Coulter 

Professional 1.0 Teacher on 
Assignment as 
the Lead 
Intervention and 
Mental Health 
Specialist (K-12) 
at Spellman 
Education Center 

1.0 Pupil 
Services 
Supervisor at 
Spellman 
Education 
Center 

7/1/22, 
$112,497 

3. Acenett 
Johnson 

Custodian 1.0 
Paraprofessional 
at Exton ES 

1.0 3rd Shift 
Custodian at 
East HS 

2/7/22, 
Group 6, 
Step 2, 
$20.69 

4. Deborah 
Whitmire 

Professional 1.0 Teacher on 
Assignment: 
Supervisor of 
Elementary 
English and 
Language Arts 

Supervisor of 
Curriculum: 
English and 
Language Arts  

7/1/22, 
$122,423 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – February 28, 2022 - p.5 

 
 

Name Type From To 
Effective 

Date 

5. Christopher 
Wyatt 

Custodian 1.0 2nd Shift 
Custodian at 
Stetson MS 

1.0 Utility 
Custodian at 
Rustin HS 

1/31/22, 
Group 3, 
Step 2, 
$22.38/hr 

 
b. Involuntary Transfer - None 

 
c. Voluntary Transfer - None 

   
IV. Personnel Leave 

a. Sabbatical Leave  

 Name Position Effective Date Ending Date 

   1. Jessica Wojcik Grade 4 Teacher 
at Hillsdale ES 

8/2022 Last day of the 2022-
2023 school year 

 
b. Unpaid Leave 

 Name Position Effective Date Ending Date 

1. Jayanthi 
Nallathambi 

Paraprofessional at 
Fern Hill ES 

1/26/2022 Last day of the 2021-
2022 school year 

 
V. Additional Information 

1. Nathan Cruz’s start date was 2/7/22. 

2. Leigh DiFerdinando’s start date was 1/25/22. 

3. Melody Dunn’s start date for the Teacher on Assignment position was 2/3/22. 

4. Maurice Hawkins’ start date was 2/22/22. 

5. Maryann Heckenberger’s salary changed to Level 6, Step 5, $60,300 

6.  Maegen Kavanagh’s start date was 1/26//22. 

7. Linda Mangold’s last day was 2/8/22. 

8. Michael McMonagle’s start date was 2/10/22. 

9. Yenys Mundell’s, Utility Custodian, salary will be changing from Group 3, Step 1, 
$20.43 to Group 2, Step 2, $22.38 due to a Letter of Agreement (LOA).  This should 
be retroactive back to 7/1/2021. 

 10. Lisa Replogle’s salary changed to Level 8, Step 10, $71,200, and will be paid 
retroactively. 

11. Kate Roseberry’s start date was 2/7/22. 

 12. Alexandra Stefano’s start date will be 3/24/22. 

 13. Jason Thompson’s start date for Teacher on Assignment position was 1/31/22. 

 14. Michael Thompson’s start date is 2/28/22. 

15. Maria Tivoli-Attah’s start date for her status change was 12/20/21. 

16. In accordance with the PA State Auditor’s recommendation, the following list of 
drivers, employed by our transportation contractors Krapf’s and On the Go Kids, 
require School Board approval.  The credentials and security clearances for each of 
these drivers has been verified to be in compliance with our transportation carrier 
contracts and have been vetted through the WCASD Transportation Office: 

 
 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – February 28, 2022 - p.6 

 
KRAPF’S 

FIRST NAME LAST NAME DRIVER/AIDE 

Thamar Speksnijder Driver 

 
ON THE GO KIDS 

FIRST NAME LAST NAME DRIVER/AIDE 

Lehla Brickus Driver 

Frances Eden Driver 

Jeannette  Garcia Aide 

 
 

VI. Tutoring 
 

Last Name First Name Location Position Title 

Dunn Michael District Tutor 

Lambert Rebecca District Tutor 

Trembath Linda District Tutor 

Yost Loralynne District Tutor 

Byrne Janice East Bradford ES Tutor 

Dougherty Stacey East Bradford ES Tutor 

Jilek Jacqueline East Bradford ES Tutor 

Mercurio Harry East Bradford ES Tutor 

Brechbiel Megan East Goshen ES Tutor 

Eleftherakis Lisa East Goshen ES Tutor 

Flores Ashley East Goshen ES Tutor 

Perhacs Kelly East Goshen ES Tutor 

Freese Kimberly Henderson HS Tutor 

Gamble Morgan Henderson HS Tutor 

Jakubowski Candy Henderson HS Tutor 

McClintock Whitney Henderson HS Tutor 

Seagraves Annie Henderson HS Tutor 

Singer Rebecca Henderson HS Tutor 

Teague Kathleen Henderson HS Tutor 

Cini Alanna Hillsdale ES Tutor 

Rostick  Brian Hillsdale ES Tutor 

Cheney Kristen Mary C Howse ES Tutor 

Cotellese Alyssa Mary C Howse ES Tutor 

Flynn Danielle Mary C Howse ES Tutor 

Cavuto Jeanne Rustin HS Tutor 

Brown Jordan Starkweather ES Tutor 

Brown Kristen Starkweather ES Tutor 

Buckley Abigail Starkweather ES Tutor 

Caroulis Christina Starkweather ES Tutor 

Comstock Michel Starkweather ES Tutor 

Dailey Melissa Starkweather ES Tutor 

Dantonio Jennifer Starkweather ES Tutor 

Franz Jennifer Starkweather ES Tutor 

Harding Kelsey Starkweather ES Tutor 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – February 28, 2022 - p.7 

 
Mastrilli Allison Starkweather ES Tutor 

McGaughey Carolyn Starkweather ES Tutor 

Melanson Erin Starkweather ES Tutor 

Renauro Amanda Starkweather ES Tutor 

Thompson Jason Westtown 
Thornbury ES 

Tutor 

Whitmire Deborah Westtown 
Thornbury ES 

Tutor 

 
 
 
 
 
 
VII.  Supplemental Contracts 
 

Last Name First Name Location Season Step 
% of 

Contract 
Total 

Contract Position Title 

’21-’22 Additions:       

Blair Thomas SMS Annual 1 100.00% $2,772.00 
Head Boys 
Lacrosse Coach 

Bushnell Erin GES Annual 1 50.00% $1,386.00 
Science 
Advocate 

Cermignano Brian PWE Annual 1 50.00% $616.00 
Student Council 
Advisor (Flex) 

Ciarrocchi Joshua EHS Spring 1 50.00% $1,848.00 
Asst. Baseball 
Coach 

Cinnamond Amanda EBE Annual 1 100.00% $1,232.00 
Chess Club 
Advisor (Flex) 

Clark Steven PMS Spring 1 100.00% $2,156.00 
Asst. Baseball 
Coach 

Cugini Charles PMS Spring 1 100.00% $2,772.00 
Head Boys 
Lacrosse Coach 

DiDomenico Deanne EBE Annual 1 50.00% $770.00 
Girls Who Code 
(Flex) 

Dunn Michael FMS Spring 1 100.00% $2,772.00 
Head Baseball 
Coach 

Evans Sean HHS Spring 10 100.00% $6,096.00 
Head Boys 
Lacrosse Coach 

Giordano Benjamin EHS Spring 2 100.00% $3,696.00 
Asst. Baseball 
Coach 

Goulet Robert PMS Spring 1 100.00% $2,772.00 
Head Baseball 
Coach 

Lepka Riley WTE Annual 1 100.00% $924.00 
Student Council 
Advisor (Flex) 

Lupacchini Felyshia FMS Spring 1 100.00% $2,156.00 
Asst. Softball 
Coach 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – February 28, 2022 - p.8 

 

Last Name First Name Location Season Step 
% of 

Contract 
Total 

Contract Position Title 

Mangold Jennifer PWE Annual 1 50.00% $616.00 
Student Council 
Advisor (Flex) 

Mastrilli Allison SWE Annual 1 25.00% $1,232.00 Head Teacher 

McCauley William FMS Spring 1 100.00% $2,772.00 
Head Softball 
Coach 

McLoone Sara PWE Annual 1 100.00% $1,540.00 
Garden Club 
Advisor (Flex) 

Mercer Allison EBE Annual 1 50.00% $770.00 
Girls Who Code 
(Flex) 

Muldowney Jessica RHS Annual N/A 50.00% $1,797.50 
Dept. Chair: 
Math 

Niedziejko Joseph GES Annual 1 50.00% $1,386.00 
After School 
Intramurals 

Pettit Atiya WTE Annual 1 40.00% $1,108.80 Equity Advocate 

Rivera Tawana FHE Annual 1 50.00% $462.00 
Grade Level 
Leader: 1st 

Roman Michael PWE Annual 1 40.00% $246.40 
School Chorus & 
Musical 

Roth Douglas EHS Spring 1 100.00% $3,696.00 
Asst. Boys 
Lacrosse Coach 

Schneider Jaclyn FMS Annual 1 50.00% $924.00 Drama Assistant 

Semple Katharine HHS Spring 4 100.00% $4,416.00 
Asst. Softball 
Coach 

Van Wyk Christine GES Annual 1 50.00% $462.00 
Grade Level 
Leader: 5th 

Vogan Sarah FMS Annual 1 50.00% $924.00 Drama Assistant 

Washington Reginald FMS Winter 15+ 50.00% $690.00 

6th Grade 
Basketball 
Coach 

Wilson Elizabeth WTE Annual 1 40.00% $1,971.20 Head Teacher 

        

‘21-‘22 Removals:        

Boyd James EHS Spring 10 100.00% $4,572.00 
Asst. Girls 
Lacrosse Coach 

Cini Alanna EHS Spring 4 100.00% $3,780.00 
Asst. Girls 
Lacrosse Coach 

Dudley Bruce HHS Spring 8 100.00% $4,416.00 
Asst. Softball 
Coach 

Dunn Melody SMS Annual N/A 100.00% $34.59/hr Bus Duty 

Evans Sean HHS Spring 10 100.00% $4,572.00 
Asst. Boys 
Lacrosse Coach 

Mashbitz Jeffrey EHS Spring 10 100.00% $4,572.00 
Asst. Softball 
Coach 

Slack Kimberly FMS Annual 1 100.00% $1,848.00 Drama Assistant 

Stankewicz Paul HHS Spring 15+ 100.00% $7,360.00 
Head Boys 
Lacrosse Coach 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – February 28, 2022 - p.9 

 

Last Name First Name Location Season Step 
% of 

Contract 
Total 

Contract Position Title 

        

’21-’22 Adjustments:        

Altland Peter GES Annual 1 50.00% $462.00 
Grade Level 
Leader: 5th 

Altland Peter GES Annual 1 50.00% $1,386.00 
After School 
Intramurals 

Altland Peter GES Annual 1 50.00% $1,386.00 
Science 
Advocate 

Anderson  Pam PWE Annual 1 75.00% $2,079.00 Equity Advocate 

Garvey Heather FHE Annual 1 50.00% $462.00 
Grade Level 
Leader: 1st 

Kropp Sarah RHS Spring 6 100.00% $5,184.00 
Head Girls 
Lacrosse Coach 

Mangold Linda PWE Annual 12 60.00% $487.20 
School Chorus & 
Musical 

Mangold Linda PWE Annual 1 25.00% $693.00 Equity Advocate 

St. Clair Michael RHS Spring 12 100.00% $1,218.00 
Spring 
Intramurals 

Stoddard Lisa SWE Annual 8 25.00% $1,472.00 Head Teacher 

Sweeley Diane RHS Annual N/A 50.00% $1,902.00 
Dept. Chair: 
Math 

Thompson Jason WTE Annual 2 60.00% $1,663.20 Equity Advocate 

Thompson Jason WTE Annual 1 60.00% $2,956.80 Head Teacher 

 



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

 
Monday, February 28, 2022           7:00 PM Fugett Middle School Auditorium 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

I recommend the Board approve the following consent agenda items: 

IX.  School Board Reports 

 

Education 

1. Approval to Terminate the following Account(s): 
-Henderson HS Family Reach 
-Henderson HS Girl Up 
-Henderson HS Jewish Student Union 

2. Approval of the following Study/Excursion trip(s): 
-Rustin HS Science Olympiad, Solon, OH, January 14-15, 2022 
-Rustin HS DECA, Hershey, PA, February 16-18, 2022 
-East HS Indoor Track, University Park, PA, February 26-27, 2022 

3. Approval of 2022-23 District Calendar, Second Reading 

4. Approval of New Board Policy 140: Charter Schools, First Reading 

5. Approval of New Administrative Guideline 140: Existing Charter School Renewal 
Process Guidelines, First Reading  

 

Pupil Services 

 

Personnel 

 

Property & Finance 

1. Approval of Revised Board Policy 903, Public Participation in Board Meetings, Second 
Reading 

2. Approval of 2022-23 E-Rate Bids 

3. Approval of New Board Policy 006.3 Broadcasting Board Meetings, First Reading 

4. Approval to Award Bids for 2022-23 Capital Reserve and Capital Fund Projects 

5. Approval of Resolution Authorizing Parameters for the Refunding of Bonds 
 

X. Other Business 

1. Approval of School Board Treasurer’s Report and Statement of Disbursements 
Summary Schedule for the Period of January 1, 2022 to January 31, 2022 

2. Approval of the January 31, 2022 Financial Report 

 

Responsible Staff: Dr. Sokolowski 
Background   
These action items are either routine or high consensus items and may not require 
discussion by the Board. If any Board member wishes to discuss any action item, the Board 
President will move it from the consent agenda to its appropriate place on the regular 
agenda. 

 



 
 

WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

Education Committee 
 

February 28, 2022 
 

Action Items 
 

 
 

Approval to Terminate the following Account(s): 
-Henderson HS Family Reach 
-Henderson HS Girl Up 
-Henderson HS Jewish Student Union 
 
Approval is requested to terminate the following Account(s):  
-Henderson HS Family Reach 
-Henderson HS Girl Up 
-Henderson HS Jewish Student Union 
 
I so move. 
 
 
Approval of the following Study/Excursion trip(s): 
-Rustin HS Science Olympiad, Solon, OH, January 14-15, 2022 
-Rustin HS DECA, Hershey, PA, February 16-18, 2022 
-East HS Indoor Track, University Park, PA, February 26-27, 2022 
 
Approval is requested of the following Study/Excursion trip(s): 
-Rustin HS Science Olympiad, Solon, OH, January 14-15, 2022 
-Rustin HS DECA, Hershey, PA, February 16-18, 2022 
-East HS Indoor Track, University Park, PA, February 26-27, 2022 
 
I so move. 
 
Approval of 2022-23 District Calendar, Second Reading 
Approval is requested of the 2022-23 District Calendar, Second Reading. 
 
I so move. 
 
 
Approval of New Board Policy 140: Charter Schools, First Reading  
Approval is requested of New Board Policy 140: Charter Schools, First Reading. 
 
I so move. 
 
 



 
 
Education Committee -2- February 28, 2022 

 
 
 
Approval of New Administrative Guideline 140: Existing Charter School Renewal Process 
Guidelines, First Reading  
Approval is requested of New Administrative Guideline 140: Existing Charter School Renewal 
Process Guidelines, First Reading. 
 
I so move. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Education Committee  

 
February 14, 2022 

Spellman Education Center Board Room 
Start: 6:32 pm – Finish: 8:37 pm  

 
 

Attending Committee Members:  

☒ Kate Shaw (Chair), ☒ Joyce Chester, ☒ Daryl Durnell, ☒ Laura Detre 

 

Other Board Members: 

☒ Gary Bevilacqua ☒ Karen Fleming ☒ Karen Herrmann ☒ Sue Tiernan 

☒ Stacey Whomsley 

 

Administration: 

☒ Robert Sokolowski ☒ Kalia Reynolds ☒ Wayne Birster ☒ Tammi Florio  

☒ Dawn Mader ☒ Sara Missett ☒ Leigh Ann Ranieri ☒ John Scully 

☒ Jeff Ulmer ☒  Michael Wagman 

 

Public comment on Agenda Items: 
 

Name Subject of Testimony 
Harvey Bower Health & Safety Plan 
Jessica Borderieux Health & Safety Plan 
Virginia Burton Health & Safety Plan 
Leann Smith-Secamiglio Health & Safety Plan 
Monica Reinhard-Gorney Health & Safety Plan 
Christian Dobbs Health & Safety Plan 
Chris McCune Health & Safety Plan 
Steph Anderson Health & Safety Plan 
Melissa Bennett Health & Safety Plan, Comprehensive Plan 
Katrina Nolan Health & Safety Plan 
Neil Weissman Health & Safety Plan 
Oliviana McBride Health & Safety Plan 
Matt McKenzie Health & Safety Plan 
George Nestor Health & Safety Plan 
Sara Getz Health & Safety Plan 
Jodi Nawrocki Health & Safety Plan 
Megan Riekob Health & Safety Plan, Comprehensive Plan 

 

Items on Agenda: 

 Review and Approval of Revised Health and Safety Plan  

 Review and Approval of New Board Policy 140: Charter Schools, First Reading and New 
Administrative Guideline 140: Charter School Renewal Guidelines, First Reading 

 Approval of 2022-23 District Calendar, Second Reading  

 Acknowledgement of $5,000 donation from Burlington Adopt a school Program to Fern Hill 
Elementary School 

 Review of 2022-2025 Comprehensive Plan  
 



Education Committee Minutes -2- February 14, 2022 

 
 
 

Education Committee Actions/Outcomes to be placed on February 28, 2022 Board Agenda 
for Approval: 

Agenda Item Vote 

Approval of the January 10, 2022 Education Committee Meeting Minutes 4-0 

Approval of Revised Health and Safety Plan  4-0 

Approval of 2022-23 District Calendar, 2nd Reading  4-0 

Approval of New Board Policy 140: Charter Schools, 1st Reading 4-0 

Approval of New Administrative Guideline 140 Charter School Renewal 
Guidelines, 1st Reading 

4-0 

 

Board Consent Agenda Items: 
 

Approval to Terminate the following Account(s): 
• Henderson HS Family Reach 
• Henderson HS Girl Up 
• Henderson HS Jewish Student Union 

 
Approval of the following Study/Excursion trip(s): 
• Rustin HS Science Olympiad, Solon, OH, January 14-15, 2022 
• Rustin HS DECA, Hershey, PA, February 16-18, 2022 
• East HS Indoor Track, University Park, PA, February 26-27, 2022 

 
 

 
Items to be discussed at a later date: None 
 















 2022-23 WCASD School Board Calendar For 2nd reading 

board approval 

2.28.2022

S M T W R F S S M T W R F S S M T W R F S S M T W R F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 1 1 2 3 4 5

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 29 30

30 31

S M T W R F S S M T W R F S S M T W R F S S M T W R F S

1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 29 30 31 26 27 28 26 27 28 29 30 31

Teacher Inservice, no school for students

S M T W R F S S M T W R F S S M T W R F S Half-Day, PM Teacher Inservice

1 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 Schools Closed

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 First Day of School

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 End of Marking Period

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 End of Trimesters

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30 Parent Conferences

30 Last Day of School for

 Students & Teachers

185 Days for Students (182)

 194 Days for Teachers (191)

 3 Snow Days Built-In

April 2023 May 2023 June 2023

Student 16/153 Teacher 16/161 Student 21/174 Teacher 22/183 Student 11/185   Teacher 11/194

December 2022 January 2023 February 2023 March 2023

Student 16/76   Teacher 16/83 Student 20/96   Teacher 20/103 Student 19/115   Teacher 19/122 Student 22/137   Teacher 23/145

August 2022 September 2022 October 2022 November 2022

Student 3   Teacher 7 Student 20/23   Teacher 21/28 Student 19/42   Teacher 19/47 Student 18/60   Teacher 20/67



 

 

 

 

  

Book Policy Manual

Section 100 Programs

Title Charter Schools

Code 140

Status First Reading

Purpose 
 
In order to provide students, parents/guardians, and community members an opportunity to establish
and maintain schools that operate independently from the District, the Board shall evaluate applications
submitted for charter or regional charter schools located within the District, in accordance with the
requirements of law and those established by the Board.[1]
 
Definitions
 
Appeal Board means the State Charter School Appeal Board established by the Charter School Law.[2]
 
Board of Trustees is the governing body of a charter or regional charter school.  Members of the
Board of Trustees shall be classified as public officials[3]
 
Charter School means an independent, nonsectarian public school established and operated under a
charter from the local Board and in which students are enrolled or attend. A charter school must be
organized as a public, nonprofit corporation; and charters may not be granted to any for-profit entity.[2]
[3][4]
 
Local Board of Directors (“Board”) means the Board of Directors of the West Chester Area School
District.[2]
 
Regional Charter School means an independent nonsectarian public school established and operated
under a charter from more than one local board of directors and in which students are enrolled or
attend.  A regional charter school must be organized as a public, nonprofit corporation; and charters
may not be granted to any for-profit entity.[2][5]
 
Authority
 
The Board’s authority regarding charter or regional charter schools arises under the Charter School Law.
 
Delegation of Responsibility
 
Applications for a charter school or regional charter school shall be submitted to the Board through the
Superintendent or designee, who shall be responsible to receive applications and for communicating
with all applicants.
 
 
Guidelines
 

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=2&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=15&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=15&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=17&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=18&subsctn=0


A charter school or regional charter school shall be subject to all federal and state laws and regulations
prohibiting discrimination in admissions, employment, and operation on the basis of actual or perceived
race, color, age, creed, religion, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender expression, ancestry,
national origin, marital status, pregnancy or handicap/disability in its programs and activities, and
provides equal access to the Boy Scouts and other designated youth groups.[3] 
 
Furthermore, a charter school or regional charter school may not discriminate in its admission policies
or practices on the basis of intellectual ability or athletic ability, measures of achievement or aptitude,
status as a person with a disability, proficiency in the English language, or any other basis that would be
illegal if used by a school district. 
 
A charter school or regional charter school shall comply with all requirements in the Charter School Law,
and applicable federal and state law and regulations. 
 
A charter or regional charter school shall submit monthly enrollment figures and other required reports
to the District, as stated in the charter.
 
Applications to Establish a New Charter School 
 
Applications for charter schools or regional charter schools must contain all the information specified in
the Charter Schools Law and any additional information required by the Board.[4][14]
 
Applications for charter schools or regional charter schools shall be submitted to the Board through
Superintendent by November 15 of the school year preceding the school year in which the school will be
established.[4] 
 
Additional information may be requested by the Board, through the Superintendent, to assist in its
evaluation of the application.
 
Within forty-five (45) days of receipt of an application, unless otherwise agreed to by the applicant, the
Board shall hold at least one (1) public hearing on the charter or regional charter application, in
accordance with law. The Board shall evaluate submitted applications for charter schools based on the
criteria established by law, regulations, and any additional criteria, as determined by the Board.[4] At
least forty-five (45) days must pass between the first public hearing and the final decision of the Board.
No later than seventy-five (75) days after the first public hearing, the Board shall grant or deny the
application.[4]
 
A charter or regional charter school application shall be approved or denied by a majority vote of all
Board members at a public meeting, in accordance with the provisions of law. Written notice of the
Board's decision shall be sent to the applicant, Department of Education, and the Appeal Board,
including reasons for denial and a clear description of application deficiencies if the application is denied.
 
Upon approval of a charter application, the Board and the charter school's Board of Trustees shall
develop a written charter which will be signed by both parties. The charter shall be for a period of three
(3) to five (5) years and may be renewed for subsequent five-year periods by the Board.[7]
 
The Board shall evaluate denied applications that are revised and resubmitted.[4][6] The Board may
conduct one or more public hearings on the revised application. The Board will consider the revised
application at its first public meeting occurring at least forty-five (45) days after receipt of the revised
application.[4]
 
Oversight and Review 
 
The Board shall annually assess whether each charter or regional charter school is meeting the goals of
its charter and shall require each charter or regional charter school to submit an annual report no later
than August 1 of each year.[10]
 
The Board shall conduct a comprehensive review prior to granting a five-year renewal of the charter.
[10] The board directs the Superintendent or his/her designee to develop administrative guidelines for

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=15&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=17&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=19&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=17&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=17&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=17&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=20&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=17&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=17&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=28&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=28&subsctn=0


the renewal process.
 
The Board shall have ongoing access to the records and facilities of the charter or regional charter
school to ensure that the charter or regional charter school is in compliance with its charter, Board
policy, and applicable laws.[10]
 
Revocation or Nonrenewal of an Existing Charter
 
The Board may choose to revoke or not renew a charter based on any of the following reasons: 
 

1. One or more material violations of the written charter.

2. Failure to meet the student performance requirements set forth in 22 Pa. Code Ch. 5 or the
written charter.

3. Failure to meet generally accepted standards of fiscal management or audit requirements.

4. Violations of any provision of the Charter School Law.

5. Violation of any provision of state or federal law from which the charter or regional charter school
has not been exempted, including any statute or regulation governing children with disabilities.

6. The charter school has been convicted of fraud.

Notice of revocation or of non-renewal of a charter given by the Board will state the grounds for such
action with reasonable specificity and provide reasonable notice regarding the public hearing
concerning such revocation or non-renewal. A public hearing concerning such revocation or non-
renewal will be arranged in accordance with the Charter School Law. A 30 day public comment period
will be held after the public hearing. After the conclusion of the public comment period, the Board will
provide the charter or regional charter school with formal notification regarding renewal or non-
renewal. 
 
In cases where the health or safety of the charter or regional charter school’s students, staff, or both is
at serious risk, the Board may take immediate action to revoke a charter.
 
If a charter is revoked, not renewed, forfeited, surrendered, or otherwise ceases to operate, the
charter or regional charter school shall be dissolved. In no event shall the district be liable for any
outstanding liabilities or obligations of the charter or regional charter school.
 
Insurance/Risk Management 
 
The charter or regional charter school shall adequately protect against liability and risk through an
active risk management program approved by the Board. The program shall include proof of purchase of
insurance coverages as required by the Board.[14][12]
 
Minimum coverages and levels of appropriate coverages shall be established in the charter.
 
A charter or regional charter school shall operate in a manner that minimizes the risk of injury and harm
to students, employees, and others.
 
The Board affirms that the Board of Trustees and the charter or regional charter school shall be solely
liable for any and all damages and costs of any kind resulting from any legal challenges involving the
operation of a charter or regional charter school. The Board shall not be held liable for any activity or
operation related to the program of a charter or regional charter school.[12]  
 
Miscellaneous 
 

1.  A charter or regional charter school and the district may arrange for the district, at the district’s
sole discretion, to provide certain services to the charter or regional charter school.  Such
agreements will be set forth in the charter or by separate contract mutually agreed upon by the

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=28&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=19&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=27&subsctn=0


Board and the Board of Trustees. 
 

2. The district shall provide student transportation for resident students enrolled in a charter school
or regional charter school as required by law, and consistent with Board Policy 810. 
 

3. The district shall provide access to its extracurricular activities or interscholastic athletics for
resident students enrolled in a charter or regional charter school as required by law, and after
demonstration by the charter or regional charter school that it does not provide an equivalent
activity for its students. Charter or regional charter school students participating in district
extracurricular activities or interscholastic athletics shall comply with Board Policy 140.1.

 
Legal
1. 24 P.S. 1702-A
2. 24 P.S. 1703-A
3. 24 P.S. 1715-A
4. 24 P.S. 1717-A
5. 24 P.S. 1718-A
6. 65 Pa. C.S.A. 701 et seq
7. 24 P.S. 1720-A
8. 24 P.S. 1723-A
9. 24 P.S. 1724-A
10. 24 P.S. 1728-A
11. 24 P.S. 1729-A
12. 24 P.S. 1727-A
13. 24 P.S. 1726-A
14. 24 P.S. 1719-A
24 P.S. 1701-A et seq
 

 

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=2&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=3&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=15&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=17&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=18&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=20&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=23&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=24&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=28&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=29&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=27&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=26&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=17A&sctn=19&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=014&chpt=17A


 

 

 

 

  

Book Policy Manual

Section 100 Programs

Title Existing Charter School Renewal Process Guidelines

Code 140AG1

Status First Reading

An existing charter or regional charter school seeking renewal of its charter shall submit, by certified
mail, to the Superintendent, the Board President, and the Board Secretary, a letter stating its intent to
seek renewal of its charter. If the charter or regional charter school is seeking any amendment to the
existing charter it shall be stated in the letter of intent. The letter of intent shall be received no earlier
than July 1 and no later than 4 p.m. on October 1 of the final year of the current charter. The
submission of the charter or regional charter school’s annual report to the district shall under no
circumstances serve as the charter or regional charter school’s letter of intent. It is the charter or
regional charter school’s sole responsibility to be cognizant of the termination date of its current charter
and request renewal in such a time frame to allow for all necessary steps in the renewal process.

Failure to submit a timely letter of intent may be a cause for nonrenewal of the charter.  Proposed
amendments to a charter not set forth in the letter of intent may not be considered as part of the
renewal.
 
Within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of the letter stating the charter or regional charter school’s
intent to renew, the Superintendent or his/her designee, shall do the following:
 

1. Acknowledge receipt of the letter in writing to the charter or regional charter school.
 

2. Provide specific information to the charter or regional charter school regarding information that
is required to be submitted to the district for its review. 
 

3. Schedule a site visit that will be a comprehensive view of the charter or regional charter school’s
operations, including a review of the school’s records, classroom observations, as well as
meetings with staff, trustees, students, and parents.

 
The charter or regional charter school shall provide all of the requested information to the district within
60 days of the notice by the Superintendent or his/her designee of the information being requested.  
 
The site visits will occur within 60 days of the notice by the Superintendent or his/her designee of the
information being requested.
 
The district may, at its sole discretion, invite representatives from the charter or regional charter school
to attend one or more of the district’s Education Committee meetings to provide information to the
committee during the 60 day period.
 
Upon receipt of the requested information from the charter or regional charter school or completion of
the site visits, whichever happens later, the district shall advise the charter or regional charter school of
the date, time, and place of the Education Committee public meeting within the next 45 days where the
administration will make a recommendation regarding the charter or regional charter school’s renewal. 



After the meeting, the Superintendent or his/her designee shall notify the charter or regional charter
school in writing of the administration’s recommendation to renew or not renew the charter.
 
In the event the recommendation is to renew the charter and a majority of the Education Committee
present at the committee meeting where the recommendation to renew is presented raise concerns
regarding the recommendation for renewal, the renewal of the charter or regional charter school shall
be scheduled for a hearing before the Board within 30 days and notification the charter or regional
charter school of the date, time and place of the hearing will be provided. Otherwise, in the event the
recommendation is to renew the charter, the renewal of the charter or regional charter school shall be
placed on the agenda of the next Board meeting and notification to the charter or regional charter
school of the date, time, and place of the meeting will be provided.
 
If the recommendation is not to renew the charter the district shall follow the procedures for non-
renewal set forth in Board Policy and the Charter School Law.
 
The time periods set forth herein may be extended by agreement of the district and the charter or
regional charter school.



 
WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Property & Finance Committee 
February 28, 2022 – ACTION ITEMS 

 
Approval of Revised Board Policy 903, Public Participation in Board Meetings, 
Second Reading 
  
Approval is requested for Revised Board Policy 903, Public Participation in Board 
Meetings, Second Reading.  
I so move. 
 
Approval of 2022-23 E-Rate Bids  
 
Approval is requested for the following E-Rate technology bids and vendors: 
 
Optiv Security – HP/Aruba and Dell-branded switchgear - $1,404,049 
Optiv Security - HP/Aruba Indoor and Outdoor Wireless Access Points - $195,476 
I so move. 
 
Approval of New Board Policy 006.3, Broadcasting Board Meetings, First 
Reading 
 
Approval is requested for New Board Policy 006.3 Broadcasting Board Meetings, First 
Reading. 
I so move. 
 
Approval to Award Bids for 2022-23 Capital Reserve and Capital Fund Projects 
 
Approval is requested for the following 2022-23 Capital Reserve and Capital Fund 
Projects List: 
 

Project 
# 

Description Vendor 2022-23 
Project 
Budget 

Award Amount 

C-070 Phase 3 Metal Roof – 
Rustin HS 

Metal Alliance $1,350,611.00 $1,284,000.00 

G-137 Phase 4 Metal Roof at 
Auditorium – Rustin HS 

Metal Alliance $   550,000.00 $   480,000.00 

G-130 Stage Lighting Upgrades 
– East HS 

Starlite $     43,000.00 $     39,113.00 

G-129 Replace (2) HVAC 
Rooftop Units – 
Warehouse 

Goshen 
Mechanical 
Contractors 

$   150,000.00 $   144,333.00 

G-131 Replace (4) Metal 
Storage Units – East HS 

Union Blue 
Enterprises, LLC 

$     40,000.00 $     38,420.00 

G-134 Replace Flooring in 
Admin and Guidance 
Offices – Henderson HS 

P. C. Curry Floor 
Covering, Inc. 

$     45,000.00 $     37,378.00 

I so move. 
-continued on Page 2- 



Property & Finance Committee 
ACTION ITEMS 2/28/22 
Page 2 
 
Approval of Resolution Authorizing Parameters for the Refunding of Bonds 
 
Approval is requested for the Parameters Resolution in the amount of $40,000,000 to 
refund all or a portion of General Obligation Bonds, Series A of 2012, Series AA of 2016, 
and Series of 2017. 
I so move. 
 
 



Committee Meeting Minutes 
WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

February 22, 2022 – Property & Finance Committee 
 
Attending Committee Members:  Director Bevilacqua-Chair, Director Fleming, Director 
Herrmann, Director Whomsley 
Other Board Members:  Director Chester, Director Durnell, Director Shaw, Director 
Tiernan  
Administration:  Mr. John Scully, Dr. Robert Sokolowski, Mr. Wayne Birster, Mr. Justin 
Matys, Mr. Wagman 
Also Present:  Members of the public 
 
Action or outcomes from the meeting:  (Unless noted, all votes were 4-0.) 
Public Comment was made by the following residents on agenda items as indicated: 
    None 
The committee approved the January 18, 2022 Property & Finance 
Committee Minutes. 

Mr. 
Bevilacqua 

Mr. Wagman reviewed the result of the RFP for the fiber optic lease and the 
mini-bids from PEPPM approved providers, per E-Rate rules, for network 
hardware for the 2022-2023 school year.  Mr. Wagman recommended 
approval of the following bids and vendors: 
Optiv Security – HP/Aruba and Dell-branded switchgear - $1,404,049 
Optiv Security - HP/Aruba Indoor and Outdoor Wireless Access Points - 
$195,476 
The pricing listed above is pre-E-Rate. E-Rate subsidized network 
equipment is referred to as a Category 2 expenditure and consistent with E-
Rate rules. The contract term begins April 1, 2022 and extends through 
September 30, 2023. The district retains the right to alter the quantity of 
switches and access points in accordance with needs at the times orders are 
placed and budgetary resources. However, the district will not exceed the 
quantities bid and the prices quoted above on these contracts. 
The committee recommended E-Rate bid approval from the recommended 
vendors. 

Mr. 
Wagman 

Mr. Wagman reviewed new Board Policy 006.3 – Broadcasting Board 
Meetings. Prior to Covid, it had been the practice of the West Chester Area 
School District to record public meetings and post them to the district’s 
website. During the pandemic when meetings had to be held remotely, the 
district began to livestream meetings for public access over the district’s 
YouTube channel. When the board started to once again meet in person, the 
practice of livestreaming meetings over the district’s YouTube channel 
continued. Livestreaming meetings benefits the broader community, 
allowing community members to view meetings in real time and increases 
community awareness of the happenings in the West Chester Area School 
District. Policy 006.3 is designed to address broadcasting in a more formal 
manner and was developed in consultation with our solicitor. 
The committee recommended approval of new Board Policy 006.3 – 
Broadcasting Board Meetings, First Reading. 
 
 
 

Mr. 
Wagman 



Mr. Birster presented the committee with bid results for the following 
previously approved 2022-2023 Capital Reserve and Capital Fund Projects: 
Project 
# 

Description Vendor 2022-23 
Project Budget 

Award Amount 

C-070 Phase 3 Metal 
Roof – Rustin HS 

Metal Alliance $1,350,611.00 $1,284,000.00 

G-137 Phase 4 Metal 
Roof at 
Auditorium – 
Rustin HS 

Metal Alliance $   
550,000.00 

$   
480,000.00 

G-130 Stage Lighting 
Upgrades – East 
HS 

Starlite $     
43,000.00 

$     
39,113.00 

G-129 Replace (2) 
HVAC Rooftop 
Units – 
Warehouse 

Goshen 
Mechanical 
Contractors 

$   
150,000.00 

$   
144,333.00 

G-131 Replace (4) 
Metal Storage 
Units – East HS 

Union Blue 
Enterprises, 
LLC 

$     
40,000.00 

$     
38,420.00 

G-134 Replace Flooring 
in Admin and 
Guidance Offices 
– Henderson HS 

P. C. Curry 
Floor 
Covering, Inc. 

$     
45,000.00 

$     
37,378.00 

   $2,178,611.00 $2,023,244.00 
The committee recommended approval of the bids for the 2022-23 Capital 
Reserve and Capital Fund Projects. 

Mr. Birster 

Mr. Scully reviewed the February Budget Forecast Model. Changes to the 
2021-22 expense projections included an increase of $800,000 in teacher 
extra duty pay, a reduction of $275,000 in teacher salaries, and a reduction 
of $300,000 in custodial salaries. Changes to the 2021-22 revenue 
projections include an increase in EIT of $350,000, an increase in transfer 
tax of $425,000, and an increase in Federal CARES revenue of $800,000. 
The net savings for 2021-22 is $1,350,000. The savings resulting from 
changes to the 2021-22 projections will be utilized to reduce the 2022-23 
budget gap. Mr. Scully reviewed the Financial Summary – All funds on page 
32 of the model.  With the incorporation of the above changes, the 
summary of all funds analysis shows no gap in 2022-23 assuming a tax 
increase up to the ACT 1 limit.  This is an informational item and no Board 
action is required. 

Mr. Scully 

Mr. Scully provided the committee with a financing update and advised the 
committee that he participated in a Moody’s rating call on February 9th 
whereby Moody’s reaffirmed the Districts Aaa rating.  The Bond sale for the 
refinancing of GOB Series A of 2012, Series AA of 2016, and Series of 2017 
will occur in the beginning of March. After the update, Mr. Scully asked for 
approval of the resolution authorizing parameters for the refunding of 
bonds. 
The Committee approved the resolution authorizing parameters for the 
refunding of the bonds. 
 

Mr. Scully 



 
Items to be placed on board agenda February 28, 2022: 
• Approval of 2022-23 E-Rate Bids 
• Approval to Board Policy 006.3, Broadcasting Board Meetings, First Reading 
• Approval to Award Bids for 2022-23 Capital Reserve and Capital Fund Projects 
• Approval of Resolution Authorizing Parameters for the Refunding of Bonds 
 
MEMO items for board agenda February 28, 2022: 
• Approval of Revised Board Policy 903, Public Participation in Board Meetings, Second 

Reading 
 
 
Items to discuss at a later date: 
  
  

Next Meeting Date:  March 21, 2022 



 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Book Policy Manual

Section 900 Community

Title Public Participation in Board Meetings

Code 903

Status Second Reading

Adopted August 1, 2015

Last Reviewed July 27, 2015

Purpose
 
The Board recognizes the value to school governance of public comment on educational issues and the
importance of involving members of the public in Board meetings. Public comment is an opportunity for
the Board to hear comments from the public; it is not meant to be a question and answer period.
 
Authority
 
The Board shall establish guidelines adopts this policy to govern public participation in Board meetings
necessary to conduct its meeting and to maintain order.[1]
 
In order to permit fair and orderly expression of public comment, the Board shall provide an opportunity
at each open meeting of the Board for residents and taxpayers to comment on matters of concern,
official action, or deliberation before the Board prior to official action by the Board.[2]
 
If the Board determines there is not sufficient time at a meeting for public comments, the comment
period may be deferred to the next regular meeting or to a special meeting occurring before the next
regular meeting.[2]
 
When an item is added to the agenda after the agenda item public comment period has
ended, the Board shall offer a further public comment opportunity limited to the added
item(s).The public comment opportunity on the added item(s) shall occur prior to official
action or deliberation on the added item(s).
 
Delegation of Responsibility
 
The presiding officer at each public Board meeting will follow the rules of the Board for the conduct of
public meetings in accordance with this policy and other applicable Board policy.[3][4][5]
 
Guidelines
 
Whenever issues identified by the participant are subject to remediation under policies and procedures
of the Board, they shall be dealt with in accordance with those policies and procedures.
 
Board Business Meetings
 

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=10&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=10&subsctn=1
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=10&subsctn=1
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=7&subsctn=0


Designated public comment times:[4][5]
1. There will be a public comment section at the beginning of the meeting for agenda items only. 

 
2. There will be a public comment section at the end of the meeting for any nonagenda items.

Board Committee Meetings or Work Sessions
 
The purpose of the Board committee meeting or work session is to review items to be placed on the
agenda for the upcoming business meeting and also to discuss other appropriate items.[4]
 
There will be a public comment period at the end beginning of each committee meeting or work
session on agenda items only. If the presiding officer determines that a topic needs time for comments,
s/he will establish that time during the meeting.
 
Procedural Guidelines
 
The Board requires that public participants be residents or taxpayers of this district or:
1.  Anyone having registered a legitimate interest in a contemplated action of the Board. 
 

1. Anyone representing a group in the school district. 
 

2. Any representative of a firm eligible to bid on materials or services solicited by the Board. 
 

3. Any district employee. 
 

4. Any district student.
All individuals wishing to participate in a public Board meeting shall register on the sign in sheet at
the beginning complete a registration card prior to the designated start of the meeting and shall
include the name and address of the participant and topic to be addressed.
 
Participants must be recognized by the presiding officer and must preface their comments by an
announcement of their name, address, township or borough, and group affiliation, if applicable.
 
Each speaker must limit his/her comments to two (2) three (3) minutes or less.
 
All comments shall be directed to the entire Board. No participant may address or question individual
Board members.
 
The presiding officer may:

1. Interrupt or terminate a participant's statement when the statement exceeds three (3)
minutes, is obscene or threatening in nature, or is commenting on subject matter that is
not appropriate for the given public comment period (e.g., agenda item versus non-
agenda item).is too lengthy, repetitive, personally directed, abusive, obscene, or irrelevant.

2. Request any individual to leave the meeting when that person does not observe reasonable
decorum. 
 

3. Request the assistance of law enforcement officers to remove a disorderly person when his/her
conduct interferes with the orderly progress of the meeting. 
 

4. Establish a time limit on public comment as part of the meeting.
The meeting agenda and all pertinent documents shall be distributed to the press and public at all
meetings.[6]



Legal 1. 65 Pa. C.S.A. 710

2. 65 Pa. C.S.A. 710.1

3. 24 P.S. 407

4. Pol. 006

5. Pol. 006.2

6. Pol. 006.3

65 Pa. C.S.A. 701 et seq

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=10&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7&sctn=10&subsctn=1
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=4&sctn=7&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/consCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&ttl=65&div=0&chpt=7


 

 

 

 

  

Book Policy Manual

Section 000 Local Board Procedures

Title Broadcasting Board Meetings

Code 006.3

Status First Reading

Purpose

The Board recognizes the value of public awareness regarding school district issues and discussions, as well as the
usefulness of broadcasting the proceedings of publicly convened meetings. It appreciates the fact that a well-
informed public is an asset to the entire school district.

Authority

The Board directs the district to record and live stream video and audio of all public meetings of the Board, which
include regular and special Board of School Director meetings, and regular and special Board committee meetings. 
The public meetings will be live-streamed at the time of the public meeting on a publicly available streaming service
of the district’s choosing, and the district will inform the public of the platform via the district website.  The
recording of the public meeting will be published, either on the district’s website or on another publicly available
website with access information available on the district’s website, within three (3) business days of the conclusion
of the public meeting.

The video and/or audio recording of any public meeting created or produced by the district is the exclusive property
of the district. The district shall retain the video and/or audio recordings in accordance with Board Policy 800 and its
administrative guidance. After the initial live stream, the audio and/or video recording of any public meeting created
or produced by the district may be used at the discretion of the Board for any appropriate district purpose.

The video and/or audio recording of any public meeting created or produced by the district or a member of the public
is not the official record of the meeting. The Board or committee approved written minutes are the official record of
the meeting.

Notification

The published agenda available at the public meeting and on the district website will state that the public meetings
are being live streamed and recorded for the purpose of public broadcast and posting on the Internet, and shall
include a notification disclaiming responsibility for both images, statements and/or actions made by those in
attendance at the recorded public meetings.  Notice will be provided to all in attendance that the public meeting is
being live streamed and recorded for posting on the Internet

Procedure

It is the Board's intent to live stream and post video and audio recorded public Board meetings in their entirety.
However, the Board recognizes that unforeseeable malfunctions of equipment or the network, disruptions in
platform or Internet access, unexpected operator unavailability or error, or weather events may occur, which may
limit the district’s ability to live stream or post a public meeting in, whole or in part.  In such an event, the district
shall publish the available portion of the public meeting in accordance with this policy.   

Obscene and profane statements or gestures made by those in attendance at the meeting may be subject to
editing, as allowable by law.



The video recording will be made by at least one (1) operable camera that will be primarily focused on the Board,
the Superintendent, Administration, and the Board Secretary. Audio will also capture all those recognized to
formally address the Board, and may capture members of the audience. The camera may visually capture persons
formally addressing the Board from the podium and members of the audience.

Attendees do not have an expectation of privacy during a public meeting. Attendance at a public meeting will be
considered consent for audio and video recording by the district and for the use of any images or statements of
those in attendance. The opinions or statements made during the public meeting are those of the individuals, and
not necessarily the opinions or statements of the district. The district does not necessarily endorse or support the
views, opinions, statements, or information contained in the live stream or recording of the public meetings.

Nothing in this policy shall be construed to permit the video recording of Board executive sessions, conferences,
and other non-public meetings.

 

Legal Pol. 006.1

Pol 006



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT,
Chester and Delaware Counties, Pennsylvania

________________________

RESOLUTION
________________________

INCURRING NONELECTORAL DEBT TO BE EVIDENCED BY 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS IN THE MAXIMUM AGGREGATE 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $40,000,000, TO REFUND ALL OR PORTIONS 
OF THIS SCHOOL DISTRICT’S OUTSTANDING GENERAL 
OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES A OF 2012, SERIES AA OF 2016 AND 
SERIES OF 2017; ACCEPTING A PROPOSAL FOR THE PURCHASE OF 
BONDS; SETTING FORTH THE PARAMETERS, SUBSTANTIAL FORM 
OF AND CONDITIONS TO ISSUE THE BONDS; PLEDGING THE FULL 
FAITH, CREDIT AND TAXING POWER OF THIS SCHOOL DISTRICT 
TO SECURE THE BONDS; APPOINTING A PAYING AGENT AND 
SINKING FUND DEPOSITORY; PROVIDING FOR THE REDEMPTION 
OF THE REFUNDED BONDS; AND AUTHORIZING RELATED 
DOCUMENTS AND ACTIONS.

________________________

WHEREAS, West Chester Area School District, located in Chester and Delaware 
Counties, Pennsylvania (the “School District”), is a school district of the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania (the “Commonwealth”), and a “Local Government Unit” within the meaning of the 
Local Government Unit Debt Act, 53 Pa.C.S. Chs. 80-82 (the “Debt Act”), governed by its Board 
of School Directors (the “School Board”); and

WHEREAS, The School Board, by its resolution adopted on November 22, 2010, 
authorized and secured this School District’s $21,000,000 aggregate principal amount General 
Obligation Bonds, Series A of 2012, dated July 23, 2012 (the “2012A Bonds”), to finance 
improvements to public school buildings, and which 2012A Bonds will become subject to optional 
redemption on or after May 15, 2022; and

WHEREAS, The Department of Community and Economic Development (the 
“Department”) approved the debt proceedings of this School District related to the 2012A Bonds, 
as evidenced by Certificate of Approval No. GOB-12081502, dated August 15, 2012; and

WHEREAS, The School Board, by its resolution adopted on November 28, 2016 (“2016 
Parameters Resolution”), authorized and secured this School District’s $8,500,000 aggregate 
principal amount General Obligation Bonds, Series AA of 2016, dated December 30, 2016 (the 
“2016AA Bonds”), to finance improvements to elementary school buildings, and which 2016AA 
Bonds will become subject to optional redemption on or after May 15, 2022; and



- 2 -

WHEREAS, The Department approved the debt proceedings of this School District related 
to the 2016AA Bonds, as evidenced by Certificate of Approval No. GOB-16122102, dated 
December 21, 2016; and

WHEREAS, The School Board, also under the 2016 Parameters Resolution, authorized 
and secured this School District’s $7,495,000 aggregate principal amount General Obligation 
Bonds, Series of 2017, dated May 31, 2017 (the “2017 Bonds”), to refund the School District’s 
General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2011, that refunded the School District’s General Obligation 
Bonds, Series of 2007, that financed improvements to school buildings, and which 2017 Bonds 
will become subject to optional redemption on or after June 15, 2022; and

WHEREAS, The Department approved the debt proceedings of this School District related 
to the 2017 Bonds, as evidenced by Certificate of Approval No. GOB-16122102, dated December 
21, 2016; and

WHEREAS, The School Board has determined to retire all or portions of the outstanding 
2012A Bonds, the 2016AA Bonds and the 2017 Bonds (collectively, the “Refunded Bonds”), as 
described in a refunding report (the “Refunding Report”), prepared for this School District by its 
independent municipal advisor PFM Financial Advisors LLC (the “Financial Advisor”), at such 
time as the total reduction in debt service resulting from refunding any of the Refunded Bonds (the 
“Refunding Projects”), after using proceeds of the Bonds to pay the costs of issuing such Bonds, 
equals at least 2.0% of the principal amount of the Refunded Bonds to be retired (the “Required 
Savings”); and

WHEREAS, The School Board shall issue one or more series of general obligation bonds 
in the maximum aggregate principal amount of Forty Million Dollars ($40,000,000) (the “Bonds”), 
to undertake the Refunding Projects, including paying the costs of issuing the Bonds; and

WHEREAS, The School Board has determined that the Bonds shall be offered in a private 
sale by negotiation, at a net purchase price of not less than 95.0% nor more than 135% of the 
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds issued (including underwriting discount and original 
issue discount or premium), plus any accrued interest (collectively, the “Purchase Price”); and 

WHEREAS, A Proposal for the Purchase of Bonds, dated February 28, 2022 (the 
“Proposal”), has been received from the Financial Advisor, containing the financial parameters 
for, and conditions to, the underwriting and issuance of the Bonds, which are consistent with the 
maximum yields to maturity and maximum principal payment amounts by fiscal year set forth in 
Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Bond Parameters”), and will be supplemented by one or more 
Addendums to the Proposal (each an “Addendum”), identifying a purchaser of the Bonds and 
containing the final terms and conditions of the Bonds, within the Purchase Price and Bond 
Parameters; and

WHEREAS, The School Board desires to accept the Proposal, award the sale of the Bonds, 
authorize the issuance of nonelectoral debt and authorize appropriate action, all in connection with 
the Refunding Projects, and in accordance with the Debt Act; and 



- 3 -

WHEREAS, The School Board has determined to appoint Manufacturers and Traders 
Trust Company (the “Paying Agent” ), having corporate trust offices in Harrisburg, Pennsylvania, 
and Buffalo, New York, as the paying agent and sinking fund depository for the Bonds; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the School Board, as follows:

SECTION 1. The School Board hereby authorizes the issuance of the Bonds pursuant 
to this Resolution, in accordance with the Debt Act, to undertake the Refunding Projects.  Eckert 
Seamans Cherin & Mellott, LLC is retained by this School District as its bond counsel in 
connection with the issuance of the Bonds.

SECTION 2. The School Board finds that it is in the best financial interests of this 
School District to sell the Bonds in a private sale by negotiation and determines that the debt to be 
incurred pursuant to this Resolution shall be nonelectoral debt.

SECTION 3. The Refunding Projects are all authorized by Section 8241(b)(1) of the 
Debt Act (reduction in total debt service over the life of each issue).  The capital projects or 
facilities originally financed or refinanced by all three series of the Refunded Bonds (public school 
building improvements) have reasonably expected remaining useful lives of at least eleven (11) 
years.  The first maturity of principal of the Bonds will not be deferred beyond two years from the 
issue date of the Bonds.

SECTION 4. The School Board accepts the Proposal of the Financial Advisor, and 
the President or Vice President of the School Board is authorized to sign the Proposal on behalf of 
this School District.  This School District’s Director of Business Affairs or Superintendent are 
hereby authorized to direct the Financial Advisor when to market the Bonds, to approve the 
Addendum identifying an underwriter and containing the final terms and conditions of the Bonds 
within the Bond Parameters, and to take other related actions to achieve at least the Required 
Savings.  The Addendum to be presented by the Financial Advisor, so approved, shall be executed 
and delivered by the President or Vice President of the School Board and included as a part of the 
Proposal accepted by this Resolution.

SECTION 5. The Bonds, when issued, will be general obligation bonds of this School 
District.

SECTION 6. The Bonds shall be issuable as one or more series, as fully registered 
bonds, without coupons, in denominations of $5,000 principal amount or any integral multiple 
thereof.

Each of the Bonds shall bear interest from the interest payment date next preceding the 
date of registration and authentication of such bond, unless:  (a) such bond is registered and 
authenticated as of any interest payment date, in which event such bond shall bear interest from 
such interest payment date; or (b) such bond is registered and authenticated after a Record Date 
(hereinafter defined) and before the next succeeding interest payment date, in which event such 
bond shall bear interest from such interest payment date; or (c) such bond is registered and 
authenticated on or prior to the Record Date next preceding the first interest payment date, in which 



- 4 -

event such bond shall bear interest from the dated date of the Bonds; or (d) as shown by the records 
of the Paying Agent, interest on such bond shall be in default, in which event such bond shall bear 
interest from the date to which interest was last paid on such bond.  Interest on each of the Bonds 
shall be payable initially on a date selected by this School District, and thereafter, semiannually, 
until the principal sum thereof is paid or provision for payment thereof duly has been made.  Except 
as to distinguishing series or subseries, numbers, denominations, interest rates and maturity dates, 
the Bonds and the Paying Agent’s certificates of authentication shall be substantially in the forms 
and shall be of the tenor and purport hereinafter set forth, with insertions and variations (including 
CUSIP numbers) approved by this School District, the Financial Advisor and the Paying Agent, 
as may be appropriate for different series, denominations and maturity dates.

Principal, premium, if any, and interest with respect to the Bonds shall be payable in lawful 
money of the United States of America.

The principal of and premium, if any, on the Bonds shall be payable to the registered 
owners thereof or their transferees, upon presentation and surrender of the Bonds at the place or 
places set forth in the Bonds.  Payment of interest on the Bonds shall be made by check mailed to 
the registered owners thereof whose names and addresses appear at the close of business on the 
fifteenth (15th) day next preceding each interest payment date (the “Record Date”) on the 
registration books maintained by the Paying Agent on behalf of this School District, irrespective 
of any transfer or exchange of any Bonds subsequent to the Record Date and prior to such interest 
payment date, unless this School District shall be in default in payment of interest due on such 
interest payment date.  In the event of any such default, such defaulted interest shall be payable to 
the persons in whose names the Bonds are registered at the close of business on a special record 
date for the payment of such defaulted interest established by notice mailed by the Paying Agent 
on behalf of this School District to the registered owners of the Bonds not less than fifteen (15) 
days preceding such special record date.  Such notice shall be mailed to the persons in whose 
names the Bonds are registered at the close of business on the fifth (5th) day preceding the date of 
mailing.

If the date for payment of the principal of or interest on any Bonds shall be a Saturday, 
Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which banking institutions in the Commonwealth are authorized 
or required by law or executive order to close, then the date for payment of such principal or 
interest shall be the next succeeding day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on 
which such banking institutions are authorized or required to close, and payment on such date shall 
have the same force and effect as if made on the nominal date established for such payment.

SECTION 7. This School District and the Paying Agent may deem and treat the 
persons in whose names the Bonds shall be registered as the absolute owners thereof for all 
purposes, whether such Bonds shall be overdue or not, and payment of the principal of, premium, 
if any, and interest on the Bonds shall be made only to or upon the order of the registered owners 
thereof or their legal representatives, but registration of a transfer of ownership may be made as 
herein provided.  All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the 
liability upon the Bonds, to the extent of the sum or sums so paid, and neither this School District 
nor the Paying Agent shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.



- 5 -

SECTION 8. Registration of the transfer of ownership of Bonds shall be made upon 
surrender of any of the Bonds to the Paying Agent, accompanied by a written instrument or 
instruments in form, with instructions, and with guaranty of signature satisfactory to the Paying 
Agent, duly executed by the registered owner thereof or his attorney-in-fact or legal representative.  
The Paying Agent shall enter any transfer of ownership of any of the Bonds in the registration 
books and shall authenticate and deliver, at the earliest practicable time, in the name of the 
transferee or transferees, a new fully registered bond or bonds of authorized denominations of the 
same series, maturity and interest rate for the aggregate principal amount that the registered owner 
is entitled to receive.  Bonds may be exchanged for a like aggregate principal amount of Bonds of 
other authorized denominations of the same series, maturity and interest rate.

SECTION 9. If Bonds shall be subject to optional redemption or mandatory 
redemption prior to stated maturity, this School District and the Paying Agent shall not be required 
to register the transfer of or exchange any of the Bonds then considered for redemption during the 
period beginning at the close of business on the fifteenth (15th) day next preceding any date of 
selection of such Bonds to be redeemed and ending at the close of business on the day of mailing 
of the notice of redemption, as hereinafter provided, or to register the transfer of or exchange any 
portion of any of the Bonds selected for redemption in whole or in part until after the redemption 
date.

SECTION 10. This School District shall cause to be kept, and the Paying Agent shall 
keep, books for the registration, exchange and transfer of Bonds in the manner provided herein 
and therein so long as Bonds shall remain outstanding.  Such registrations, exchanges and transfers 
shall be made without charge to bondholders, except for actual costs, including postage, insurance 
and any taxes or other governmental charges required to be paid with respect to the same.

SECTION 11. The Bonds shall bear interest, with a Purchase Price resulting in yields 
to maturity, and principal maturing or payable upon mandatory sinking fund redemptions, in the 
maximum annual amounts in each fiscal year as set forth in Exhibit A.

SECTION 12. The Bonds may be subject to optional redemption by this School 
District prior to maturity, on such date or dates and under such terms as may be determined  in the 
manner described in Section 4 hereof. The Bonds may be subject to mandatory redemption prior 
to maturity, to be set forth in the Addendum, not in excess of any annual principal payment amount 
set forth in Exhibit A hereof.

SECTION 13. This School District appoints the Paying Agent as the paying agent with 
respect to the Bonds and directs that the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds 
shall be payable at a designated corporate trust office of the Paying Agent, in lawful money of the 
United States of America.

Any corporation or association into which the Paying Agent, or any appointed successor 
to it, may be merged or converted or with which it, or any appointed successor to it, may be 
consolidated, or any corporation or association resulting from any merger, conversion or 
consolidation to which the Paying Agent shall be a party, or any corporation or association to 



- 6 -

which the Paying Agent, or any appointed successor to it, sells or otherwise transfers all or 
substantially all of its corporate trust business, including its functions under this Resolution, shall 
be the successor paying agent hereunder, without the execution or filing of any paper or any further 
act on the part of this School District, and thereafter references herein to the “Paying Agent” shall 
refer to such resulting corporation or association, or to such transferee, as the case may be. 

If the Paying Agent at any time shall resign or shall be removed by this School District, the 
Board of School Directors shall appoint a successor paying agent that is duly qualified in 
accordance with the Act to serve as paying agent for the Bonds and sinking fund depository with 
respect to the Sinking Fund created herein, and the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and 
interest on the Bonds shall be payable, when due, at a designated office of the successor paying 
agent located in the Commonwealth and at such additional payment offices as the successor paying 
agent shall designate.  Upon acceptance of such appointment and the transfer by the Paying Agent 
to the successor paying agent of the appropriate documents, records, and funds, references herein 
to the “Paying Agent” shall thereafter refer to such successor paying agent.

SECTION 14. The form of the Bonds shall be substantially as set forth in Exhibit B, 
which is attached hereto and made part hereof, with appropriate insertions, omissions and 
variations.

SECTION 15. The Bonds shall be executed in the name of and on behalf of this School 
District by the manual or facsimile signature of the President or Vice President of the School 
Board, and the official seal or a facsimile of the official seal of this School District shall be affixed 
thereto and the manual or facsimile signature of the Secretary of the School Board shall be affixed 
thereto in attestation thereof; and said officers are authorized to execute and to attest the Bonds.

SECTION 16. No bond constituting one of the Bonds shall be entitled to any benefit 
under this Resolution nor shall it be valid, obligatory or enforceable for any purpose until such 
bond shall have been registered and authenticated by the Certificate of Authentication endorsed 
thereon duly signed by the Paying Agent; and the Paying Agent is authorized to register and 
authenticate the Bonds in accordance with the provisions hereof.

SECTION 17. This School District covenants to and with registered owners, from time 
to time, of the Bonds that shall be outstanding, from time to time, pursuant to this Resolution, that 
this School District shall:  (i) include the amount of the debt service on the Bonds, for each fiscal 
year of this School District in which the sums are payable, in its budget for that year, 
(ii) appropriate those amounts from its general revenues for the payment of the debt service, and 
(iii) duly and punctually pay or cause to be paid from the Sinking Fund (hereinafter identified) or 
any other of its revenues or funds the principal of and interest on each of the Bonds at the dates 
and places and in the manner stated therein, according to the true intent and meaning thereof; and, 
for such budgeting, appropriation and payment, this School District shall and does pledge, 
irrevocably, its full faith, credit and taxing power.  As provided in the Debt Act, the foregoing 
covenant of this School District shall be specifically enforceable.



- 7 -

SECTION 18. There is hereby created, pursuant to the requirements of the Debt Act, 
one or more sinking funds for the Bonds (collectively, the “Sinking Fund”) including, if applicable, 
multiple series or subseries, or a mandatory sinking fund.  The Sinking Fund shall be administered 
in accordance with the Debt Act.

SECTION 19. This School District appoints the Paying Agent as the sinking fund 
depository with respect to the Sinking Fund.

SECTION 20. This School District covenants to make payments out of the Sinking 
Fund, or out of any other of its revenues or funds, at such times and in such annual amounts, as 
shall be sufficient for prompt and full payment of all obligations of the Bonds when due.

SECTION 21. The School Board hereby authorizes the preparation of a Preliminary 
Official Statement and Official Statement for use in the marketing of the Bonds and authorizes the 
Business Manager of this School District to approve the form of such Preliminary Official 
Statement and the form of a final Official Statement with respect to the Bonds of this School 
District, with such insertions and amendments as shall be necessary or appropriate to reflect the 
final terms and provisions of the Bonds, the accepted Proposal and this Resolution.  The President 
of the School Board shall affix his or her signature to the Official Statement, as such officer, and 
such execution of the Official Statement shall constitute conclusive evidence of the approval of 
the Official Statement by the School Board.

SECTION 22. The President or Vice President and the Secretary, respectively, of the 
School Board are authorized and directed, as required, necessary and/or appropriate:  (a) to 
prepare, to certify and to file with the Department the debt statement required by the Debt Act; 
(b) to prepare and to file with the Department any statements required by the Debt Act that are 
necessary to qualify all or any portion of the debt of this School District that is subject to exclusion 
as self-liquidating or subsidized debt for exclusion from the appropriate debt limit of this School 
District as self-liquidating or subsidized debt; (c) to prepare and to file the application with the 
Department, together with a complete and accurate transcript of the proceedings for the required 
approval relating to the debt, of which debt the Bonds, upon issue, will be evidence, as required 
by the Debt Act; (d) to pay or to cause to be paid to the Department all proper filing fees required 
in connection with the foregoing; and (e) to take other required, necessary and/or appropriate 
action.

The School Board authorizes and directs that an appropriate borrowing base certificate be 
prepared for filing with the Department as required by the Debt Act.  The President or Vice 
President and the Secretary, respectively, of the School Board are hereby authorized to prepare 
and to execute, or to authorize the preparation and execution of such borrowing base certificate.

SECTION 23. If applicable, as determined from the Addendum, the School Board 
authorized and directs the purchase of municipal bond guaranty insurance with respect to the 
Bonds. The officers and agents of this School District are authorized and directed to take all 
required, necessary and/or appropriate action with respect to such insurance, as contemplated in 
the Addendum, including the payment of the premium of such insurance.



- 8 -

SECTION 24. The President or Vice President and the Secretary, respectively, of the 
School Board are authorized and directed to contract with the Paying Agent for its services as 
paying agent for the Bonds and as sinking fund depository in connection with the Sinking Fund 
established for the Bonds.

SECTION 25. It is declared that the debt to be incurred hereby, together with any other 
indebtedness of this School District, is not in excess of any limitation imposed by the Debt Act 
upon the incurring of debt by this School District.

SECTION 26. The officers and agents of this School District are authorized to deliver 
the Bonds and to authorize payment of all costs and expenses associated with the issuance of the 
Bonds as provided for in the Proposal, but only after the Department has certified its approval 
pursuant to the provisions of the Debt Act or at such time when the filing authorized to be 
submitted to the Department pursuant to the Debt Act shall be deemed to have been approved 
pursuant to applicable provisions of the Debt Act.

SECTION 27. This School District covenants to and with purchasers of the Bonds that 
it will make no use of the proceeds of such Bonds, or of any other obligations deemed to be part 
of the same “issue” as Bonds under applicable Federal tax regulations, that will cause such Bonds 
to be or become “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of Section 103(b)(2) and Section 148 of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), and the Treasury Regulations 
implementing said Sections of the Code.

This School District further covenants to and with purchasers of the Bonds that it will make 
no use of the proceeds of the Bonds, of the proceeds of any other obligations deemed to be part of 
the same “issue” as the Bonds under applicable federal tax regulations, or of any property or 
facilities financed with the proceeds of the Bonds or of any such other obligations deemed to be 
part of the same “issue” as the Bonds, that will cause the Bonds to be or become “private activity 
bonds” within the meaning of Section 141 of the Code and the Treasury Regulations implementing 
said Sections of the Code.  This School District shall comply with all other requirements of the 
Code, if and to the extent applicable, to maintain continuously the Federal income tax exemption 
of interest on the Bonds.

If applicable, the President or Vice President of the School Board is authorized to represent 
in a certificate delivered when the Bonds are issued, that this School District does not then 
reasonably expect to issue tax-exempt obligations that, together with all tax-exempt obligations 
reasonably expected to be issued by all entities that issue bonds on behalf of this School District 
and all “subordinate entities” (within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3)(E) of the Code) of this 
School District, in the aggregate, will exceed Ten Million Dollars ($10,000,000) (excluding 
obligations issued to refund (other than to advance refund) any obligation to the extent that the 
amount of the refunding obligation does not exceed the outstanding amount of the refunded 
obligation) in the calendar year of issuance and, accordingly, thereby designate the Bonds (to the 
extent they are not “deemed designated” under Section 265(b)(3)(D)(ii) of the Code), on behalf of 
this School District, as “qualified tax-exempt obligations,” as defined in Section 265(b)(3)(B) of 
the Code, for the purposes and effect contemplated by Section 265 of the Code.



- 9 -

SECTION 28. This School District does hereby authorize the optional redemption(s) 
of the Refunded Bonds on the earliest date(s) on or after the issue date of the Bonds, as authorized 
by the Refunded Bonds (the “Redemption Date”), in accordance with the rights and privileges 
reserved to this School District in the Refunded Bonds, and as described in the Addendum.

Officers and agents of the School Board are hereby authorized and directed to give 
irrevocable instructions to the paying agent or trustee for the Refunded Bonds to redeem the 
Refunded Bonds in accordance with this election of the School Board, following the acceptance 
of the final terms and conditions of the Bonds and Addendum as described in section 4 hereof and 
the consummation of the final sale, issuance and delivery of the Bonds.

If applicable, this School District, simultaneously with delivery of the Bonds, shall enter 
into a bond retirement agreement (the “Bond Retirement Agreement”) with the paying agent of 
the Refunded Bonds (the “Redemption Agent”).  The Bond Retirement Agreement shall provide 
for a deposit of Bond proceeds into the sinking funds originally established for the Refunded 
Bonds, with the Redemption Agent sufficient to pay the debt service due on the Refunded Bonds 
through the Redemption Date.  The President or Vice President and the Secretary, respectively, of 
the School Board are authorized and directed to execute, to attest, and to seal, as appropriate, and 
to deliver such Bond Retirement Agreement simultaneously with such delivery of the Bonds.  This 
School District approves the Bond Retirement Agreement in form satisfactory to the Solicitor and 
Bond Counsel for this School District and as shall be approved by the officers of the School Board 
executing the same.  Such approval of such officers shall be conclusively presumed to have been 
given by their execution of the Bond Retirement Agreement.

The officers and agents of this School District are hereby authorized and directed to take 
all such actions and provide all such documentation as may be necessary and appropriate to 
accomplish the redemption and retirement of the Refunded Bonds.

SECTION 29. If applicable, the President, Vice President or Treasurer of the School 
Board, or the Superintendent or Director of Business Affairs, respectively, of this School District 
is each hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver agreements, orders or subscriptions 
for purchase of United States Treasury Certificates of Indebtedness, Bonds, Bonds, State and Local 
Government Series or other securities of the United States of America, collateralized certificates 
of deposit or other investments satisfying the requirements of 53 Pa.C.S. §8250, as described in 
updates to the Refunding Report, from proceeds of the Bonds and, if applicable, other funds to be 
deposited under the Bond Retirement Agreement, and to do, to take and to authorize such other 
acts as shall be necessary or appropriate to retire the Refunded Bonds, as described in the 
Refunding Report and this Resolution.

SECTION 30. If applicable, the Secretary of the Board of this School District is hereby 
authorized and directed to execute and to submit to the Pennsylvania Department of Education, 
promptly following settlement for the Bonds, the appropriate application and other documents and 
information necessary to obtain state reimbursement with respect to the debt service on the Bonds.



- 10 -

SECTION 31. This School District shall enter into, and hereby authorizes and directs 
the President or Vice President of the School Board to execute, a Continuing Disclosure Certificate 
(the “Certificate”) on behalf of this School District on or before the date of issuance and delivery 
of the Bonds.  Such Certificate shall be executed and delivered to satisfy the terms and conditions 
of the accepted Proposal for sale of the Bonds and Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 
15c2-12, and shall be substantially in the form previously utilized by this School District, together 
with any changes therein made and approved by the executing officer of the School Board, whose 
execution and delivery thereof shall constitute conclusive evidence of such approval.  A copy of 
the Certificate shall be filed with the Secretary of the School Board and shall be and hereby is 
made part of this Resolution.

This School District hereby covenants and agrees that it will comply with and carry out all 
of the provisions of the Certificate.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Resolution, failure 
of this School District to comply with the Certificate shall not be considered an event of default 
with respect to the Bonds; however, any registered owner of the Bonds may take such actions as 
may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandamus or specific performance by court 
order, to cause this School District to comply with its obligations under this Section and such 
Certificate.

SECTION 32. The Bonds shall be made available for purchase under a book-entry only 
system available through The Depository Trust Company, a New York corporation (“DTC”).  If 
applicable, at or prior to settlement for the Bonds, this School District and the Paying Agent shall 
execute or signify their approval of a Representation Letter in substantially the form on file with 
DTC (the “Representation Letter”).  The appropriate officers of this School District and the Paying 
Agent shall take such action as may be necessary from time to time to comply with the terms and 
provisions of the Representation Letter, and any successor paying agent for the Bonds, in its 
written acceptance of its duties under this Resolution, shall agree to take any actions necessary 
from time to time to comply with the requirements of the Representation Letter.

SECTION 33. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Resolution, the Bonds 
shall initially be issued in the form of one fully-registered bond for the aggregate principal amount 
of the Bonds of each maturity, and the following provisions shall apply with respect to the 
registration, transfer and payment of the Bonds:

(a) Except as provided in subparagraph (g) below, all of the Bonds shall be registered 
in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC; provided that if DTC shall request that the Bonds 
be registered in the name of a different nominee, the Paying Agent shall exchange all or any portion 
of the Bonds for an equal aggregate principal amount of Bonds of the same series, interest rate and 
maturity registered in the name of such nominee or nominees of DTC.

(b) No person other than DTC or its nominee shall be entitled to receive from this 
School District or the Paying Agent either a Bond or any other evidence of ownership of the Bonds, 
or any right to receive any payment in respect thereof, unless DTC or its nominee shall transfer 
record ownership of all or any portion of the Bonds on the registration books (the “Register”) 



- 11 -

maintained by the Paying Agent in connection with discontinuing the book-entry system as 
provided in subparagraph (g) below or otherwise. 

(c) So long as any Bonds are registered in the name of DTC or any nominee thereof, 
all payments of the principal or redemption price of or interest on such Bonds shall be made to 
DTC or its nominee in accordance with the Representation Letter on the dates provided for such 
payments under this Resolution.  Each such payment to DTC or its nominee shall be valid and 
effective to fully discharge all liability of this School District or the Paying Agent with respect to 
the principal or redemption price of or interest on the Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so 
paid.  In the event of the redemption of less than all of the Bonds outstanding of any maturity, the 
Paying Agent shall not require surrender by DTC or its nominee of the Bonds so redeemed, but 
DTC (or its nominee) may retain such Bonds and make an appropriate notation on the Bond 
certificate as to the amount of such partial redemption; provided that DTC shall deliver to the 
Paying Agent, upon request, a written confirmation of such partial redemption and thereafter the 
records maintained by the Paying Agent shall be conclusive as to the amount of the Bonds of such 
maturity which have been redeemed.

(d) This School District and the Paying Agent may treat DTC (or its nominee) as the 
sole and exclusive owner of the Bonds registered in its name for the purposes of payment of the 
principal or redemption price of or interest on the Bonds, selecting the Bonds or portions thereof 
to be redeemed, giving any notice permitted or required to be given to holders of Bonds under this 
Resolution, registering the transfer of Bonds, obtaining any consent or other action to be taken by 
holders of Bonds and for all other purposes whatsoever; and neither this School District nor the 
Paying Agent shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.  Neither this School District nor the 
Paying Agent shall have any responsibility or obligation to any participant in DTC, any person 
claiming a beneficial ownership interest in the Bonds under or through DTC or any such 
participant, or any other person which is not shown on the Register as being a registered owner of 
Bonds, with respect to (1) the Bonds, (2) the accuracy of any records maintained by DTC or any 
such participant, (3) the payment by DTC or any such participant of any amount in respect of the 
principal or redemption price of or interest on the Bonds, (4) any notice which is permitted or 
required to be given to holders of the Bonds under this Resolution, (5) the selection by DTC or 
any such participant of any person to receive payment in the event of a partial redemption of the 
Bonds, and (6) any consent given or other action taken by DTC as holder of the Bonds.

(e) So long as the Bonds or any portion thereof are registered in the name of DTC or 
any nominee thereof, all notices required or permitted to be given to the holders of such Bonds 
under this Resolution shall be given to DTC as provided in the Representation Letter.

(f) In connection with any notice or other communication to be provided to holders of 
Bonds pursuant to this Resolution by this School District or the Paying Agent with respect to any 
consent or other action to be taken by holders of Bonds, DTC shall consider the date of receipt of 
notice requesting such consent or other action as the record date for such consent or other action, 
provided that this School District or the Paying Agent may establish a special record date for such 
consent or other action.  This School District or the Paying Agent shall give DTC notice of such 



- 12 -

special record date not less than 15 calendar days in advance of such special record date to the 
extent possible.

(g) The book-entry only system for registration of the ownership of the Bonds may be 
discontinued at any time if either (1) after notice to this School District and the Paying Agent, DTC 
determines to resign as securities depository for the Bonds, or (2) after notice to DTC and the 
Paying Agent, this School District determines that continuation of the system of book-entry 
transfers through DTC (or through a successor securities depository) is not in the best interests of 
this School District.  In either of such events (unless in the case described in clause (2) above, this 
School District appoints a successor securities depository), the Bonds shall be delivered in 
registered certificate form to such persons, and in such maturities and principal amounts, as may 
be designated by DTC, but without any liability on the part of this School District or the Paying 
Agent for the accuracy of such designation.  Whenever DTC requests this School District and the 
Paying Agent to do so, this School District and the Paying Agent shall cooperate with DTC in 
taking appropriate action after reasonable notice to arrange for another securities depository to 
maintain custody of certificates evidencing the Bonds.

SECTION 34. The President and Vice President and the Secretary, respectively, of the 
Board are authorized and directed to perform such acts as may be necessary to facilitate the 
marketing and settlement of the Bonds and the refunding of the Refunded Bonds.

SECTION 35. Any reference in this Resolution to an officer or member of the School 
Board shall be deemed to refer to his or her duly qualified successor in office, or other authorized 
representative, if applicable.

SECTION 36. In the event any provision, section, sentence, clause or part of this 
Resolution shall be held to be invalid, such invalidity shall not affect or impair any remaining 
provision, section, sentence, clause or part of this Resolution, it being the intent of this School 
District that such remainder shall be and shall remain in full force and effect. 

SECTION 37. All resolutions or parts of resolutions, insofar as the same shall be 
inconsistent herewith, shall be and the same expressly are repealed.

SECTION 38. This Resolution shall be effective in accordance with the Debt Act.



DULY ADOPTED, by the School Board, in lawful session duly assembled, this 28th day 
of February, 2022.

WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT,
Chester and Delaware Counties, Pennsylvania

By:
(Vice) President of the Board of

School Directors

ATTEST:

Secretary of the Board of
School Directors

(SEAL)



EXHIBIT A
Page 1 of 1

EXHIBIT A

WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Chester and Delaware Counties, Pennsylvania

$40,000,000 Maximum Aggregate Principal Amount
General Obligation Bonds



EXHIBIT B
Page 1 of 8

EXHIBIT B

(FORM OF BOND)

[The following Legend is to be printed on any Bonds registered in the name of The Depository Trust Company or 
Cede & Co., its nominee:  “Unless this certificate is presented by an authorized representative of The 
Depository Trust Company, a New York corporation (“DTC”), to the Issuer or its agent for 
registration of transfer, exchange or payment, and any certificate issued is registered in the name of 
Cede & Co. or in such other name as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any 
payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized representative 
of DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR 
OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL in as much as the registered owner 
hereof, Cede & Co., has an interest herein.”]

Number $

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

COUNTIES OF CHESTER AND DELAWARE
WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND, SERIES __ OF 202_

INTEREST MATURITY DATE
RATE DATE OF SERIES CUSIP
          %

REGISTERED OWNER: CEDE & CO.

PRINCIPAL SUM: ________________________________ DOLLARS ($________)

WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT, located in Chester and Delaware 
Counties, Pennsylvania (the “Issuer”), a school district existing under laws of the Commonwealth 
of Pennsylvania (the “Commonwealth”), for value received, promises to pay to the order of the 
registered owner named hereon, or registered assigns, on the maturity date stated hereon, upon 
presentation and surrender hereof, the principal sum stated hereon, unless this General Obligation 
Bond, Series __ of 202_ (the “Bond”), shall be redeemable and duly shall have been called for 
earlier redemption and payment of the redemption price shall have been made or provided for, and 
to pay initially on __________, ____, and thereafter semiannually on _________ and ________ 
of each year, to the registered owner hereof, interest on said principal sum, at the rate per annum 
stated hereon, until said principal sum has been paid or provision for payment thereof duly has 
been made.  Interest on this Bond shall be payable from the interest payment date next preceding 



EXHIBIT B
Page 2 of 8

the date of registration and authentication of this Bond, unless:  (a) this Bond is registered and 
authenticated as of any interest payment date, in which event this Bond shall bear interest from 
such interest payment date; or (b) this Bond is registered and authenticated after a Record Date 
(hereinafter defined) and before the next succeeding interest payment date, in which event this 
Bond shall bear interest from such next succeeding interest payment date; or (c) this Bond is 
registered and authenticated on or prior to the Record Date next preceding __________, ____, in 
which event this Bond shall bear interest from the Date of Series set forth above; or (d) as shown 
by the records of the Paying Agent (hereinafter defined), interest on this Bond shall be in default, 
in which event this Bond shall bear interest from the date to which interest was last paid on this 
Bond.  The interest on this Bond is payable by check drawn on Manufacturers and Traders Trust 
Company (the “Paying Agent”), or its successor.  The principal of and premium, if any, on this 
Bond, when due, are payable upon surrender hereof at the designated corporate trust office of the 
Paying Agent.  Payment of the interest hereon shall be made to the registered owner hereof whose 
name and address shall appear, at the close of business on the fifteenth (15th) day next preceding 
each interest payment date (the “Record Date”), on the registration books maintained by the Paying 
Agent, irrespective of any transfer or exchange of this Bond subsequent to such Record Date and 
prior to such interest payment date, unless the Issuer shall be in default in payment of interest due 
on such interest payment date.  In the event of any such default, such defaulted interest shall be 
payable to the person in whose name this Bond is registered at the close of business on a special 
record date for the payment of such defaulted interest established by notice mailed by the Paying 
Agent to the registered owner of this Bond not less than fifteen (15) days preceding such special 
record date.  Such notice shall be mailed to the person in whose name this Bond is registered at 
the close of business on the fifth (5th) day preceding the date of mailing.  Principal, premium, if 
any, and interest with respect to this Bond are payable in lawful money of the United States of 
America. 

This Bond is one of a series of bonds of the Issuer, known generally as “General 
Obligation Bonds, Series __ of 202_” (the “Bonds”), all of like date and tenor, except as to 
numbers, denominations, dates of maturity, rates of interest, and provisions for redemption, in the 
aggregate principal amount of ____________________________ Dollars ($___________).

The Bonds have been authorized for issuance in accordance with provisions of the 
Local Government Unit Debt Act, 53 Pa.C.S. Chs. 80-82 (the “Debt Act”), of the Commonwealth, 
and by virtue of a duly adopted resolution (the “Resolution”) of the Issuer.  The Debt Act, as such 
shall have been in effect when the Bonds were authorized, and the Resolution shall constitute a 
contract between the Issuer and registered owners, from time to time, of the Bonds.

The Issuer has covenanted, in the Resolution, to and with registered owners, from 
time to time, of the Bonds that shall be outstanding, from time to time, pursuant to the Resolution, 
that the Issuer shall:  (i) include the amount of the debt service for the Bonds, for each fiscal year 
of the Issuer in which such sums are payable, in its budget for that year, (ii) appropriate such 
amounts from its general revenues for the payment of such debt service, and (iii) duly and 
punctually pay or cause to be paid, from the sinking fund established under the Resolution or any 
other of its revenues or funds, the principal of and interest on each of the Bonds at the dates and 
place and in the manner stated therein, according to the true intent and meaning thereof; and, for 



EXHIBIT B
Page 3 of 8

such budgeting, appropriation and payment, the Issuer has pledged and does pledge, irrevocably, 
its full faith, credit and taxing power.

This Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit under the Resolution, nor shall it be 
valid, obligatory or enforceable for any purpose, until this Bond shall have been authenticated by 
the Paying Agent.

The Bonds are issuable only in the form of registered bonds, without coupons, in 
the denominations of $5,000 principal amount or any integral multiple thereof.  Bonds may be 
exchanged for a like aggregate principal amount of Bonds of other authorized denominations of 
the same maturity and interest rate upon surrender of such Bonds to the Paying Agent, with written 
instructions satisfactory to the Paying Agent.

The Issuer and the Paying Agent may deem and treat the registered owner hereof 
as the absolute owner hereof (whether or not this Bond shall be overdue) for the purpose of 
receiving payment of or on account of principal hereof, premium, if any, and interest due hereon 
and for all other purposes, and the Issuer and the Paying Agent shall not be affected by any notice 
to the contrary.

This Bond may be transferred by the registered owner hereof upon surrender of this 
Bond to the Paying Agent, accompanied by a written instrument or instruments in form, with 
instructions, and with guaranty of signature satisfactory to the Paying Agent, duly executed by the 
registered owner of this Bond or his attorney-in-fact or legal representative.  The Paying Agent 
shall enter any transfer of ownership of this Bond in the registration books and shall authenticate 
and deliver at the earliest practicable time in the name of the transferee or transferees a new fully 
registered bond or bonds of authorized denominations of the same series, maturity and interest rate 
for the aggregate principal amount which the registered owner is entitled to receive.

The Issuer and the Paying Agent shall not be required to issue or to register the 
transfer of or exchange any Bonds then considered for redemption during a period beginning at 
the close of business on the fifteenth (15th) day next preceding any date of selection of Bonds to 
be redeemed and ending at the close of business on the day of mailing of the applicable notice of 
redemption, as hereinafter provided, or to register the transfer of or exchange any portion of any 
bond selected for redemption until after the redemption date.

The Bonds stated to mature on or after ___________, ____, are subject to 
redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the Issuer, as a whole, on ___________, ____, or on 
any date thereafter, upon payment of the principal amount thereof, together with accrued interest 
to the date fixed for redemption.

The Bonds stated to mature on or after ___________, ____, are subject to 
redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the Issuer, from time to time, in part, in any order of 
maturity selected by the Issuer, on ___________, ____, or on any date thereafter.  If less than all 
Bonds of any particular maturity are to be redeemed, the Bonds of such maturity to be redeemed 
shall be drawn by lot by the Paying Agent.  Any such redemption shall be upon payment of the 
principal amount to be redeemed, together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for 
redemption.



EXHIBIT B
Page 4 of 8

The Bonds stated to mature on ____________, ____, are subject to mandatory 
redemption prior to maturity, in the amounts and on _________ of the year(s) set forth in the 
following schedule as drawn by lot by the Paying Agent in behalf of the Issuer:

Year Amount
$
$           .

Any such redemption shall be upon application of money available for the purpose in the 
Mandatory Sinking Fund established under the Resolution and shall be upon payment of the 
principal amount to be redeemed, together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for 
redemption.  In lieu of such mandatory redemption, the Paying Agent, as sinking fund depository, 
in behalf of the Issuer, may purchase, from money available for the purpose in the Sinking Fund 
established under the Resolution, at a price not to exceed the principal amount plus accrued 
interest, or the Issuer may tender to the Paying Agent, all or part of the Bonds subject to being 
drawn for redemption in any such year.

In the case of any partial redemption of Bonds of any maturity that is subject to 
mandatory sinking fund redemption, the Issuer shall be entitled to designate whether the amount 
to be redeemed shall be credited against the principal amount of such Bonds due at maturity or 
credited against the principal amount of such Bonds scheduled to be called for mandatory sinking 
fund redemption on any particular date or dates, in each case in an integral multiple of $5,000 
principal amount.

If this Bond is of a denomination larger than $5,000, a portion of this Bond may be 
redeemed.  For the purposes of redemption, this Bond shall be treated as representing the number 
of Bonds that is equal to the principal amount hereof divided by $5,000, each $5,000 portion of 
this Bond being subject to redemption.  In the case of partial redemption of this Bond, payment of 
the redemption price shall be made only upon surrender of this Bond in exchange for Bonds of 
authorized denominations of the same maturity and interest rate and in aggregate principal amount 
equal to the unredeemed portion of the principal amount hereof; Provided, however, that should 
this Bond be registered in the name of The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) or Cede & Co., 
as nominee for DTC, or any other nominee of DTC, or any other successor securities depository 
or its nominee, this Bond need not be surrendered for payment and exchange in the event of a 
partial redemption hereof and the records of the Paying Agent shall be conclusive as to the amount 
of this Bond which shall have been redeemed.

Notice of redemption shall be deposited in first class mail not less than 30 days 
prior to the date fixed for redemption and shall be addressed to the registered owners of the Bonds 
to be redeemed at their addresses shown on the registration books kept by the Paying Agent as of 
the day such Bonds are selected for redemption.  Failure to mail any notice of redemption or any 
defect therein or in the mailing thereof shall not affect the validity of any proceeding for 
redemption of other Bonds so called for redemption as to which proper notice has been given.

On the date designated for redemption, notice having been provided as aforesaid, 
and money for payment of the principal, premium, if any, and accrued interest being held by the 



EXHIBIT B
Page 5 of 8

Paying Agent, interest on the Bonds or portions thereof so called for redemption shall cease to 
accrue and such Bonds or portions thereof so called for redemption shall cease to be entitled to 
any benefit or security under the Resolution, and registered owners of such Bonds or portions 
thereof so called for redemption shall have no rights with respect thereto, except to receive 
payment of the principal to be redeemed and accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for 
redemption, together with the redemption premium, if any.

The Issuer, in the Resolution, has established a sinking fund with the Paying Agent, 
as the sinking fund depository, into which funds for the payment of the principal of and the interest 
on the Bonds shall be deposited not later than the date fixed for the disbursement thereof.  The 
Issuer has covenanted, in the Resolution, to make payments from such sinking fund or from any 
other of its revenues or funds, at such times and in such annual amounts as shall be sufficient for 
prompt and full payment of all obligations of this Bond.

It hereby is certified that:  (i) all acts, conditions and things required to be done, to 
happen or to be performed as conditions precedent to and in issuance of this Bond or in creation 
of the debt of which this Bond is evidence have been done, have happened or have been performed 
in due and regular form and manner, as required by law; and (ii) the debt represented by this Bond, 
together with any other indebtedness of the Issuer, is not in excess of any limitation imposed by 
the Debt Act upon the incurring of debt by the Issuer.

[This Bond has been designated by the Issuer as a “qualified tax-exempt 
obligation”, as defined in Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended (the “Code”), for purposes and effect contemplated by Section 265 of the Code 
(relating to expenses and interest relating to tax-exempt income of certain financial 
institutions).]



EXHIBIT B
Page 6 of 8

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer has caused this Bond to be executed in its 
name by the manual or facsimile signature of the President of the Board of School Directors, and 
its official seal or facsimile thereof to be affixed hereto and the manual or facsimile signature of 
the Secretary of the Board of School Directors to be affixed hereto in attestation thereof, all as of 
the Date of Series.

WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT,
Chester and Delaware Counties, Pennsylvania

By:
President of the Board of School Directors

ATTEST:

Secretary of the Board of School Directors

(SEAL)

_____________________



EXHIBIT B
Page 7 of 8

(FORM OF PAYING AGENT’S CERTIFICATE)

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION AND CERTIFICATE AS TO OPINION

It is certified that:

(i) This Bond is one of the Bonds described in the within-mentioned Resolution; and

(ii) An original Opinion issued by Eckert Seamans Cherin & Mellott, LLC, dated and 
delivered on the date of the original delivery of, and payment for, such Bonds is on file at our 
designated corporate trust office, where the same may be inspected; and

MANUFACTURERS AND TRADERS TRUST 
COMPANY,
as Paying Agent

By:
Authorized Representative

Date of Registration and Authentication:  

_____________________



EXHIBIT B
Page 8 of 8

(FORM OF ASSIGNMENT)

ASSIGNMENT

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, ________________________________________, the 
undersigned, hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto

_______________________________________________________________ (the “Transferee”)
Name

______________________________________________________________________________
Address

Social Security or Federal Employer Identification No.________________ the 
within Bond and all rights thereunder and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 
______________________________________________, as attorney-in-fact, to transfer the 
within Bond on the books kept for registration thereof with full power of substitution in the 
premises.

___________________________________

___________________________________

Date: _________________________________

Signature Guaranteed: 

_____________________________________
NOTICE:  Signature(s) must be 
guaranteed by an institution that is a 
participant in a signature guarantee 
program recognized by the Securities 
Transfer Association.

NOTICE:  No transfer will be made in the name 
of the Transferee unless the signature(s) to this 
assignment correspond(s) with the name(s) 
appearing upon the face of the within Bond in 
every particular, without alteration or 
enlargement or any change whatever and the 
Social Security or Federal Employer 
Identification Number of the Transferee is 
supplied.  If the Transferee is a trust, the names 
and Social Security or Federal Employer 
Identification Numbers of the settlor and 
beneficiaries of the trust, the Federal Employer 
Identification Number and date of the trust and 
the name of the trustee must be supplied.

________________________________________



CERTIFICATE

I, the undersigned, Secretary of the Board of School Directors of WEST CHESTER 
AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT, located in Chester and Delaware Counties, Pennsylvania (the 
“School District”), certify that:  the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a Resolution that was 
duly adopted by affirmative vote of a majority of all members of the Board of School Directors of 
this School District at a meeting duly held on February 28, 2022; said Resolution duly has been 
recorded in the minute book of the Board of School Directors of this School District; a notice with 
respect to the intent to adopt said Resolution has been published as required by law; said Resolution 
was available for inspection by any interested citizen requesting the same in accordance with the 
requirements of the Local Government Unit Debt Act of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and 
such notice; and said Resolution has not been amended, altered, modified or repealed as of the date 
of this Certificate.

I further certify that the Board of School Directors of this School District met the 
advance notice and public comment requirements of the Sunshine Act, 65 Pa.C.S. §701 et seq., by 
advertising the time and place of said meeting, by posting prominently a notice of said meeting at 
the principal office of this School District or at the public building in which said meeting was held, 
and by providing a reasonable opportunity for public comment prior to adoption of said Resolution, 
all as required by such Act.

I further certify that:  the total number of members of the Board of School Directors 
of this School District is nine (9); the vote of members of the Board of School Directors of this 
School District upon said Resolution was called and duly was recorded upon the minutes of said 
meeting; and members of the Board of School Directors of this School District voted upon said 
Resolution in the following manner:

Gary Bevilacqua -
Joyce Chester -
Laura Detre -
Daryl Durnell -
Karen Fleming -
Karen Herrmann -
Kate Shaw -
Sue Tiernan -
Stacey Whomsley -

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I set my hand and affix the official seal of this School 
District, this 28th day of February, 2022.

Secretary of the Board of
School Directors

(SEAL)



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

February 28, 2022 SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 
 

CONSENT AGENDA RESOLUTION 
 

Approval of School Board Treasurer’s Report and Statement of Disbursements 
Summary Schedule for the Period of January 1, 2022 to January 31, 2022 

 
The Treasurer’s Report includes the schedules of the School District’s cash balances 
for the General Fund, Activity/Trust Funds, and Cafeteria Fund; the investments 
schedule for the General Fund, Capital Reserve and Capital Project Funds; the 
schedule of disbursements for all funds, and the debit memos and check register for all 
funds. The Statement of Disbursements Summary Lists total expenditures by fund for 
the period.  
 
Approval is requested for the Treasurer’s Report and the disbursements listed on the 
Statement of Disbursements Summary for the period of January 1 to January 31, 2022 
totaling $18,402,120.31.  
 
 
 
I so move. 
 
 
 
 
The Treasurer’s Report is available in its entirety on the business office webpage and in 
the Board Meeting packet posted on School Board webpage at www.wcasd.net.  Please 
contact the School Board Secretary for any hard copies of the report. 
 
 
John T. Scully 
School Board Treasurer  
 
 
 

http://www.wcasd.net/








































































WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

February 28, 2022 SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 
 

CONSENT AGENDA RESOLUTION 
 

Approval of the January 31, 2022 Financial Report 
 

Approval is requested for the West Chester School District Financial Report for the month 
ending January 31, 2022.  
 
I so move. 
 
2021-2022 General Fund Financial Analysis 
 
The expenses and revenues as of January 2022 represent 7 months of financial activity for the 
District.  To date we have collected $180.3 million in real estate taxes which is $4.7 million over 
budget. Outstanding taxes not collected by December 31st were liened and submitted to the 
County on January 15 for collection in accordance with PA tax collection law. Year-to-date we 
have collected $1.9 million in interim taxes which is well ahead of last year and this is due to the 
new construction within the District. We will continue to receive interim tax revenues throughout 
the remainder of the school year.   
 
The second largest local revenue category is Earned Income Tax which is trending ahead of last 
year collections.  Based on last year’s EIT collections as well our current YTD collections, we 
will be increasing our projections for the current year.  We have received $5.5 million in transfer 
taxes year to date, this amount is ahead of last year and is the result of the size and timing of 
property transfers within the District.   
 
Our local revenues YTD total $202.4 million or 99.05% of budget.  State and federal revenues 
are on target with budget. We have increased our Federal Cares grant revenue in the amount of 
$92,684 to support the hiring of the Community Engagement Specialist.   
 
We have reduced our projections for salaries and benefits related to average teacher salary in 
the amount of $710,615, reduced teacher and custodial salaries in the amount of $575,000 as a 
result of vacancies, offset with an increase of $92,684 as a result of the hiring of the Community 
Engagement Specialist. We also increased our projection for teachers extra pay of $800,000 
due to summer school and tutoring related to education recovery as a result of the pandemic, 
this amount is funded fully by federal Cares funding. We have decreased our supplies in the 
amount of $51,030 as a result of our enrollment and PPA reconciliation, reduced our 
transportation expense by $750,000 due to extensive route consolidation, reduced charter 
school tuitions by $650,000 and reduced our debt service expense in the amount of $411,417. 
 
And as you can see on the statement, we have budgeted $279.5 million in expenses and $254.0 
million in revenues this year and we budgeted to use $25.5 million of our fund balance to close 
the gap between the expenses and revenues.  Our fund balance is projected to be $52.2 million 
at June 30th 2022, but we plan to utilize $25.7 million of that to help close the budget gap for the 
2022-23 school year.  
 
This concludes the financial report. 
 
John T. Scully, School Board Treasurer 































 

  

WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

February 28, 2022 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 

 
 
 
Approval of The Devereux Foundation d/b/a Devereux Advanced 
Behavioral Health Contract for Bilingual Therapy Services 
Approval is requested of The Devereux Foundation d/b/a Devereux Advanced 
Behavioral Health Contract for Bilingual Therapy Services. 
 
I so move. 
 
 
Approval to appoint Board Member Daryl Durnell as a member of the 
Chester County Intermediate Unit No. 24 Board of Directors 
Approval is requested to appoint Board Member Daryl Durnell as a member of the 
Chester County Intermediate Unit No. 24 Board of Directors to complete the unexpired 
term of Sue Tiernan ending on June 30, 2022. 
 
I so move. 
 
 
Approval of revised West Chester Area School District Management 
Team Organizational Chart 
Approval is requested of the revised West Chester Area School District Management 
Team Organizational Chart with authorization for the District to proceed with the 
immediate posting and hiring of the Assistant Director of Facilities and Operations 
position and the immediate posting of the Behavioral Specialist Coordinator with a start 
date of July 1, 2022. 
 
I so move. 
 



Superintendent

Elementary 
Principals (11)

High School 
Principals (3)

Middle School 
Principals (3)

Asst. Director

Instructional 
Technology 
Coordinators

(4)

School Board of Directors

Special Ed 
Supervisors 

(k-12)
(3)

Capital 
Programs 
Manager

Director of 
Business Affairs

Director of Elementary 
School Education/

Gifted k-12

Director of Human 
Resources

Director of 
Technology

Director of Pupil 
Services

Director of 
Facilities & 
Operations

MS Assistant 
Principals (6)

Athletic 
Directors (3)

HS Assistant 
Principals (9)

Assistant Superintendent

Direct report

Indirect report

Director of Teaching 
and Learning

Communications 
Manager

Nursing 
Coord.

Social Work 
Coord.

Asst. to the 
Director

Asst. to the 
Director-

Secondary

Asst. to the 
Director-

Elementary

Director of Equity 
and Assessment

Asst. Director

Public Safety 
Supervisor

2022-23 Org. Chart 
For Board approval

2/28/2022

Supervisors 
-ELA
-Math 

-Science

Superintendents Cabinet

Pupil Services 
Supervisor

Asst. DirectorAsst. Director

Behavior 
Specialist 

Coord.

7/1/22 start date for: Supervisors and 
Coordinator positions

Immediate start date for:
Asst. Director of F&O


	a 2022.02.28 Board Agenda
	b 2022.01.24 Jan 24 Minutes - draft
	c 2022.02.28 Personnel Recs
	d 2022.02.28 Consent Agenda
	e Edu Comm Feb 28 Action Item packet
	a .Action Items 02.28.22
	b Ed Comm Minutes Feb 14 2022 draft
	c 2022.02.28 Feb Edu Comm CA packet
	2 Terminate Henderson HS Family Reach
	3 Terminate Henderson HS Girl Up
	4 Terminate Henderson HS Jewish Student Union
	5 Overnight RHS Science Olympiad - Salon, OH 1.14.22-1.15.22
	6 Overnight RHS DECA - Hershey, PA 2.16.22-2.18.22
	7 Overnight EHS Indoor Track - University Park, PA 2.26-27.22

	d 22-23 SB Calendar final Draft to Board 2.28.22
	e  New Policy 140 Charter Schools
	f New AG 140AG1 Existing Charter School Renewal Process Guidelines

	f PF Comm Feb 28 Action Item packet
	2.28.22 PFC ACTION items
	Property & Finance Committee
	February 28, 2022 – ACTION ITEMS

	2.22.22 PFC Committee Minutes
	Revised Policy 903 Public Participation, 2nd R
	New 006.3 Broadcasting Board Meetings, First Reading
	WEST CHESTER SCHOOL 2022 GO BONDS PFM PARAMETERS REFUNDING DEBT RESOLUTION(101103185)

	g OBus Feb 28 Action Items
	2.28.22 Treasurer's Report packet
	Jan 2022 treasurers report
	2022.02 February Treasurer's Report
	Statement of Disbursements Jan 2022

	2.28.22 Financial Report packet
	Jan 2022 finreport
	Revenue and Expense Report January 2022

	Other Business Feb 28 Action Items
	2022.028 OB contract Org Chart DDurnell
	WCASD Org Chart to be bd apvd 2.28.2022





